WOUNDS	ALONE /	AHMED ELMI ABDULLE THE USE	THE CON
WITH TISSUE LOSS IN DIABETIC RATS.	AND/OR WITH NPH INSULIN CREAM IN HEALING	OF COLD ATMOSPHERIC NITRIC OXIDE (NO) GAS	IPARISON OF IL-1 GENE EXPRESSION ANALYZES IN
		MOLECULAR MEDICINE	MASTER THESIS IN
	2024	1011	NEU

NEAR EAST UNIVERSITY

# INSTITUTE OF GRADUATE STUDIES DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL BIOLOGY MOLECULAR MEDICINE PROGRAM

THE COMPARISON OF *IL-1* GENE EXPRESSION ANALYZES IN THE USE OF COLD ATMOSPHERIC NITRIC OXIDE (NO) GAS ALONE AND/OR WITH NPH INSULIN CREAM IN HEALING WOUNDS WITH TISSUE LOSS IN DIABETIC RATS.

M.Sc. THESIS

Ahmed Elmi ABDULLE

Nicosia

**JUNE** , 2024

# NEAR EAST UNIVERSITY

# INSTITUTE OF GRADUATE STUDIES DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL BIOLOGY MOLECULAR MEDICINE PROGRAM

# THE COMPARISON OF *IL-1* GENE EXPRESSION ANALYZES IN THE USE OF COLD ATMOSPHERIC NITRIC OXIDE (NO) GAS ALONE AND/OR WITH NPH INSULIN CREAM IN HEALING WOUNDS WITH TISSUE LOSS IN DIABETIC RATS.

**M.Sc. THESIS** 

Ahmed Elmi ABDULLE

Supervisor

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Mahmut Çerkez ERGÖREN

Nicosia

**JUNE**, 2024

# **APPROVAL**

We certify that we have read the thesis submitted by AHMED ELMI titled, "The Comparison of *IL-1 gene* expression analyzes in the use of cold atmospheric Nitric Oxide (NO) gas alone and/or with NPH insulin cream in healing wounds with tissue loss in diabetic rats' and that in our combined opinion it is fully adequate, in scope and quality, as a thesis for the degree of Master of Educational Sciences.

Supervisor: Assoc. Prof. Dr. MAHMUT ÇERKEZ ERGOREN

Name-Surname Examining Committee Signature Dr. HAVVA ÇOBANOĞULLARI... Head of the Committee: Committee Member\*: Prof. Dr. SELMA YILMAZ Supervisor: Assoc. Prof. Dr. MAHMUT ÇERKEZ ERGOREN....

Approved by the Head of the Department

Approved by the Institute of Graduate Studies



28/06/2024 Prof Selma Yilmaz Head of Department

28//06/2024



# DECLARATION

I hereby declare that all information, documents, analysis and results in this thesis have been collected and presented according to the academic rules and ethical guidelines of Institute of Graduate Studies, Near East University. I also declare that as required by these rules and conduct, I have fully cited and referenced information and data that are original to this study

# AHMED ELMI ABDULLE

28/06/2024

# ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I want to start by saying thank you to my family for all of their help and encouragement when I was writing my thesis. I would like to thank all scientists for their expertise and technological opportunities that have enabled me to finish my thesis.

My sincere appreciation also goes out to **Assoc. Prof.Dr MAHMUT ÇERKEZ ERGÖREN** for their help all the requirement during the experaments either primer and samples and also encouragement during the entire thesis writing process. I would like **Prof. Dr. SELMA YILMAZ** for their help the coorection of my project also encouragement during the entire thesis writing process. I should also say that I could not have advanced scientifically without the knowledge they provided, and that finishing my thesis would have been extremely challenging without them, my supervisor my molecular medicine department lecturers for igniting my love of science and for sharing their expertise with me.

I must acknowledge my family, who have been my backbone, their trust, support, and patience in every challenge or joy in life have been the bedrock of my success Particularly my dear father, Haji Elmi Abdulle and my mother Fadumo Abdi, for his tireless support and significant contribution of my educational journey. Also i thanks my second family my uncle Haji Omar Gedi and my second mother Hajia Amino Yusuf Mire she gave birth to me without problems and I thanks Dr Abdirahim Omar who is contribution of my educational journey. I thank my elder brother Haji Abdifatah Elmi and muqtar elmi, Dr Bile Elmi for being my role model, my best friend, and also contribution of my educational journey. also would like to thanks my sisters Safiyo Elmi and Hawo Elmi really they are Not only my sisters they supporting like my mother i was belevied it's a backbond my educational journey, to all those not explicitly mentioned but who contributed in various ways, your support did not go unnoticed and is deeply appreciated. Finally I would to special thanks my dear sister Safiyo Elmi she help to me successful in the life and she is part of my life and encouragement during the entire education miss you sister let's enjoy life to the fullest together as soon as possible. To each of you, I am deeply thankful, and aslo I would to Drs Aini Hussein she was morally support during journey education. Finally I would like Ihab Yasir Radwan, he helps the data analaysis also encouragement during the entire thesis writing process

#### AHMED ELMI ABDULLE

# ABSTRACT

# The Comparison of *IL-1* gene expression analyzes in the use of cold atmospheric Nitric Oxide (NO) gas alone and/or with NPH insulin cream in healing wounds with tissue loss in diabetic rats.

#### M.Sc., Molecular Medicine Program

#### June, 2024, 77 Pages

Interleukine-1: One of the main cytokines in the inflammatory phase of wound healing is interleukin-1. Simply put, it must stimulate the immune system to enter the wound site, which is necessary for the next stages of healing. This study evaluates the effect of cold atmospheric Nitric Oxide (NO) gas, alone and in combination with NPH insulin cream, on IL-1 gene expression in wound healing in diabetic rats. Diabetic wounds are prone to chronic inflammation due to overexpression of cytokines like IL-1, which complicates healing, influences immune cell behavior and may modulate inflammatory responses, thereby enhancing healing. The study involved 24 samples from diabetic rats with tissue loss wounds. Total RNA was extracted using TRIZOL reagent, followed by cDNA synthesis and quantitative PCR to assess IL-1 gene expression. The study adhered to ethical guidelines, and informed consent was obtained for the use of samples. In an analysis using a paired t-test to assess the mean differences between DC, DNO, a highly significant two-tailed P value of <0.0001 was observed, indicating a substantial difference from zero, and Statistical analysis revealed a strong positive correlation between DC and IL-1 in control groups (r = 0.9994, P < 0.0001), validating DINO as a reliable reference gene. The findings suggest that NO's role in wound healing is potentiated when combined with NPH insulin cream, highlighting a synergistic effect in reducing inflammation and accelerating tissue repair. This combination therapy could be particularly beneficial for diabetic rats who suffer from impaired wound healing. Further research should explore the long-term effects and potential clinical applications of this combination therapy.

*Keywords:* Atmospheric cold plasma, nitric oxide, insulin ointment, diabetic wound healing, and NPH.

APPROVAL	III
DECLARATION	IV
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	V
ABSTRACT	VI
List of Abbreviations	XI
CHAPTER I	L
Introduction	1
Problem of the statement	3
Purpose of the study	3
Research objective	4
Hypothesis of the study	4
The study significance	4
CHAPTER II	6
Literary Review	6
The The $\beta$ -actin gene	6
Family Members of <i>IL-1</i>	9
Alpha interleukin-1	9
Beta Interleukin-1	9
Synthesis, administration, and transcription of IL-1.	9
Receptors for <i>interleukin-1</i>	10
Interleukin-1 signaling in immunology and inflammation	11
Natural inhibitors of <i>IL-1</i> signaling	12
An interleukin receptor antagonist <i>IL-1Ra</i>	12
The interleukin-1 Superfamily	13

# Table of Contents

	13
The <i>IL-1R</i> -like gene	14
IL-1 is not an innate cytokine, but an inflammatory cytokine	15
The Families of IL-1 Cytokine and Receptors	16
Nitric Oxide Therapy for Diabetic rats Wound Healing	16
Local Elements That Affect Recovery	17
The Physiology of Healed Wounds	19
Diabetes-Related Impaired Wound Healing	21
Nitric Oxide's Kinetic Dependence	21
Choice Chronic Wound Model	22
<b>CHAPTER III:23</b>	
Methodology	23
Materials and Methods	23
Research plan and methods:	23
Research plan and methods:	23 23
Research plan and methods:	23 23 23
Research plan and methods: Methods Data Collection Setup of reaction and cDNA preparation	23 23 23 23 24
Research plan and methods: Methods Data Collection Setup of reaction and cDNA preparation Product analysis for PCR	23 23 23 24 24 30
Research plan and methods:         Methods         Data Collection         Setup of reaction and cDNA preparation         Product analysis for PCR         The software system	23 23 23 24 24 30 30
Research plan and methods: Methods Data Collection Setup of reaction and cDNA preparation Product analysis for PCR The software system <b>CHAPTER VI:</b>	23 23 23 24 30 30 31
Research plan and methods: Methods Data Collection Setup of reaction and cDNA preparation Product analysis for PCR The software system <b>CHAPTER VI:</b> <b>RESULT</b>	23 23 23 24 30 31 31
Research plan and methods:   Methods   Data Collection   Setup of reaction and cDNA preparation   Product analysis for PCR   The software system   CHAPTER VI:   RESULT   CHAPTER V	23 23 23 24 30 31 31 31 31
Research plan and methods:   Methods   Data Collection   Setup of reaction and cDNA preparation   Product analysis for PCR   The software system   CHAPTER VI:   RESULT   CHAPTER V	23 23 23 24 30 31 31 31 40 40

.4	4
•4	1

Conclusion and Recommendations	44
Recommendations	46
Cold Atmospheric Nitric Oxide (NO) Gas it may help in Antimicrobial Action:	46
Combination Therapy: Cold Atmospheric NO Gas and NPH Insulin Cream	47
Reference	48
APPENDICES	64
Appendix A	64
Appendix B	65
Turnition Similarity Report	65
CURRICULUM VITAE	66

# LIST OF TABLES

Table 1: cDNA Kit Components and Preparation:	25
Table 2: This table shows the conditions for the polymerase chain reaction used in	n the
cDNA synthesis step	25
Table 3: Preparation 2X SYBR Green qPCR Mix Component	26
Table 4: Target Base Sequences of the Primers for Pairs:	27
Table 5: Conditions for PCR displaying the primer dime 40x Cycles times	28
Table 6: Thermal cycling conditions for PCR 40x Cycles times:	29
Table 7: The conditions for Annealing Primer Time and temperature for PCR	30
Table 8: Comparison of Intraleukin-1 expression level in all groups	34
Table 9: The Compared between DC and DNO	36
Table 10: compared the DC group between DC and DINO	37

# LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1: Ct PCR for 24 rats and negative control samples amplification plot	31
Figure 2: Intraleukin-1 mRNA expression level in all groups	33
Figure 3: Compared between DC and DNO	35
Figure 4: The comparision between DC and DINO	37

# List of Abbreviations

IL-1:	Interleukin-1.
NO:	nitric oxide
LPS:	lipopolysaccharide.
NPH:	Neutral Protamine Hagedorn
DNA:	Deoxyribonucleic acid.
PCR:	polymerase chain reaction.
RNA:	Ribonucleic acid.
cDNA:	complementary DNA.
TBE:	Tris Borate EDTA
UV:	ultraviolet
RNS:	Reactive nitrogen species
ROS:	reactive oxygen species
Ct:	Cycle Threshold
qPCR:	Quantitative polymerase chain reaction
IL-1R:	Interleukin-1 receptor
CV:	Coefficient of Variation.

# **CHAPTER I**

# Introduction

*Interleukin-1:* One of the main cytokines in the inflammatory phase of wound healing is interleukin-1. Simply put, it must stimulate the immune system to enter the wound site, which is necessary for the next stages of healing (O'Shea 2008, Amin et al 2020). On the other hand, overexpression of *IL-1* may contribute to the persistence of inflammation and even the inability of diabetic wounds to heal (Garlanda 2013, Dinarellov 2013, and Mantovani 2013).

Low-molecular-weight (about 6–70 kDa) soluble proteins called cytokines are released by a range of cells, including mast cells, NK cells, natural killer (NK) cells, stromal cells and lymphocytes (Amin et al 2020). They take part in the immune response and function as crucial immune system communication network mediators. Important health determinants, cytokines are in charge of dynamically regulating immune cell maturation, proliferation, and responsiveness (Boraschi 2022).

Nitric oxide (NO), which is produced and released by major skin cell types such as fibroblasts, keratinocytes, and melanocytes, has been linked to the development and differentiation of skin cells. Thus, several groups have investigated the impact of NO on immune cells (Diegelmann 2004).

Nitric oxide, or NO, is produced and released by the main skin cell types, including fibroblasts, keratinocytes, melanocsytes, and endothelial cells. It is involved in the skin's reaction to damage and infection (Arnold 2006, Barbul 2006). Numerous organizations have also looked into the impact of NO on immune cells. It has been demonstrated that LPS (lipopolysaccharide) induces the generation of iNOS (inducible nitric oxide synthase) in murine macrophages, which is inhibited by cytokines including TNF (tumor necrosis factor) and IFN-c (interferon gamma), (Hunter et al 2013).

NO plays two roles in inflammation. It has an anti-inflammatory action in typical physiological circumstances. but when inflammatory cytokines are overproduced, as happens after an infection or injury, it has a pro-inflammatory role (Witte 2002, Barbul 2002).

As a signaling molecule, NO number of physiological functions, including vasodilation, neurotransmission, and immunological function. It also draws immune cells and increases the production of collagen, both of which are necessary for tissue repair (Mast 1996, Schultz 1996).

As a result, NO can contribute to wound healing by causing angiogenesis. Important for tissue regeneration, it also draws immune cells and increases the creation of collagen. NPH Insulin Cream: Insulin with an intermediate half-life is NPH. Topical use of insulin has been studied for wound healing Insulin is relevant for accelerating tissue regeneration (Curukoglu, 2023, Gungor, et al 2023).

Normal wound healing proceeds in a sequential manner, starting with hemostasis, moving on to inflammation, proliferation, and ultimately dermal structural remodeling from the point of injury to full epithelialization. Diabetes-related wounds that develop microangiopathy and neuropathy exhibit suppression, These conditions also affect collagen organization and cell proliferation (Ahmed et al 2022).

Endogenous nitric oxide (NO) gas transmitters have been identified as an endogenous, non-resistant antibacterial agent and an endogenous, uncontrolled modulator of inflammation. They are essential for wound healing and have lately become more widely used in wound treatment (Dwyer 2018).

Many academics are trying to come up with alternative, more efficient ways to treat diabetic wounds because of the impending danger to the health of those who have the disease and the rising prevalence of diabetes worldwide (Campos 2008, Groth 2008, and Branco 2008). This exacerbates not only the challenge of developing an effective treatment plan but also the consequences of systemic diabetes, such as decreased collagen production, altered inflammatory response, and hypoxia in the tissue (Blakytny2006, Jude 2006).

## **Problem of the statement**

The following might be the problem statement for a study looking at how NPH insulin cream and cold atmospheric Nitric Oxide (NO) gas affect diabetic rats' ability to repair wounds: rats with diabetes are at a heightened risk of severe infection and amputation, prolonged pain, and greater medical costs due to chronic wounds with tissue loss. In a diabetic, the inflammatory response—which is mediated by cytokines like interleukin-1 (*IL-1*)—is dysregulated, delaying the healing process. Due to their lack of attention to the pathophysiological changes underlying the development of diabetic ulcers and wound healing, current treatment strategies are not particularly effective.

In recent years, there has been an increasing research interest about the significance of cold atmospheric nitric oxide (NO) gas due to its potential therapeutic utility for antibacterial, anti-inflammatory, and angiogenesis-promoting activities. Because NPH insulin cream alters cellular metabolism and proliferation, it has long been known among rats and negative control samples to have wound-healing properties. Nevertheless, it is currently unknown in a synergistic way, mostly by changing the expression of the interleukin-1 gene. This study attempts to close this gap by examining the effects of NPH insulin cream alone, cold ambient NO gas alone, in *IL-1 gene* expression during wound healing. The significance, broad potential effects, and general knowledge gap of the planned research must all be shown in the problem description. It prepares the ground for in-depth experimental research and analysis.

## Purpose of the study

The current study will thus assess gene expression analysis of *IL-1* in the wounds with lost tissue of diabetic rats by applying NO gas alone or combined with NPH insulin cream.

#### **Research objective**

- 1) To measure gene expression level of Interleukin-1 in diabetic rats wound tissues treated with NPH insulin cream (*diabetic NPH insulin group labeled as DI*) or with cold atmospheric NO gas *diabetic nitric oxide CAP/NO group labeled as DNO*) or treated with both of them (*diabetic NPH insulin group with nitric oxide CAP/NO labeled as DINO*) or treated with none of them (*diabetic control group labeled as DC*) to establish how these treatments modulate the inflammatory response in diabetic rats and assess the effects on *IL-1 gene* expression.
- To explore the synergistic potential, and find out if applying NPH insulin cream and cold atmospheric NO gas together will speed up wound healing more quickly than either treatment alone can.
- To offer molecular alterations beyond of the *IL-1 gene* expression, synthesis of additional cytokines and growth factors, to fully comprehend how the treatments affect the healing processes.

## Hypothesis of the study

In these experiments, NO gas with NPH insulin cream has been introduced both singly and in combination. These serve as a guide for the theories that are developed and put to the test through experiments. As a result, they are prepared to be put to the test and shown to be true or false by the research's findings, which will either confirm or refute the hypotheses and add to the body of knowledge that will be helpful.

### The study significance

This study aims to understand the underlying the molecular mechanisms, and the components involved in diabetes that affect the expression of the IL-1 gene in proper wound healing and diabetic ulcers in diabetic rats, as well as chronic wounds that are among the major consequences that result in high rates of disability, morbidity, and even death in individuals with diabetes (Dorsett-Martin 2004), keeping in mind the importance of the target-specific pro-inflammatory cytokines, the information on the IL-1 roles in diabetic wound healing processes will help to design new drug therapies in the field.

In diabetic rats, bound to considerably minimize these hazards are boosting quality of life while speeding and enhancing the wound healing process. This study may offer some important insights into the field of wound management because it compares two distinct. As a result, combination therapy, when taken as a whole, only partially addresses the complex pathophysiology of diabetic wounds (Armstrong 2017, Boulton 2017, Bus 2017).

The most significant element in both inflammation and immunity, *IL-1*, has been found to family member a major factor of IL-1 Thus, assessing the potential impact of these treatments on *IL-1 gene* expression and the establishment of new guidelines in this area. This might facilitate the treatment and repair of diabetic wounds in a variety of domains, including wound care, pharmacology, and endocrinology (Boulton et al 2005).

These have wide-ranging and important implications for public health, particularly with regard to improving wound healing in diabetics, the majority of whom live around the world yet remain undetected. (Dorsett-Martin 2004, Olokoba 2012).

**Keywords:** Atmospheric cold plasma, nitric oxide, insulin ointment, diabetic wound healing, and NPH.

# **CHAPTER II**

# **Literary Review**

# The The β-actin gene

One type of actin product whose expression is relatively constant in most cells and tissues is the nuclear DNA  $\beta$ -actin gene. It is commonly used as an internal reference in PCR due to its detection rate (Baltzis 2014, Eleftheriadou 2014, Veves 2014). This study involved the amplification of a pure  $\beta$ -actin gene from mouse-derived RNA via PT-PCR, followed by cloning, screening, PCR identification, and restriction enzyme digestion. It would be useful as the foundation for the next experiments. Despite the  $\beta$ -actin gene being the focus of multiple studies and lengthy research, the end product is quite superficial. Along with our much improved experimental operation skills, we will comprehend not only the function of the  $\beta$ -actin gene but also—and maybe most importantly—the value of cooperation and acquire independent thought in relation to the  $\beta$ -actin gene (Auron et al 1984, Baek et al 1993).

NTERLEUKIN-1 is a classic example of a cytokine with several functions in contrast to influences almost, frequently in combination, *IL1* represents a very inflammatory cytokine; therefore, there is a skinny line between clinical benefit and intolerable toxicity in humans, even though beneficial (Hotamisligil 2006). Agents that lower *IL-1* production and activity, however, are probably going to affect clinical medicine. This regulation extends from gene expression to synthesis to secretion at the level (Kaneko et al 2019). To date, introns and exons indicates that a common gene was duplicated approximately 350 million years ago (Peterson et al 1993). Fibroblast growth factor (FGF) may have originated from an ancestor gene prior to this common *IL-1* because *IL-1* and FGF create an all-pleated sheet tertiary structure, lack a signal peptide, and show significant amino acid homologies (Brännström 1993, Wang1993, and Norman 1993).

Diabetes mellitus is a long-term metabolic condition that develops as a result of elevated blood glucose levels. Impaired wound healing is one of the problems associated with diabetes (Sacerdote et al 2019).

Rats control samples frequently have delayed wound healing as a result of immunological system deficits, neuropathy, decreased skin perfusion, and persistent inflammation. Chronic wounds, infections, and, in extreme situations, amputations can result from this impeded recovery (Maria Retzepi2010, Lewis2010, and Donos 2010).

The small, diffusible molecule known as nitric oxide (NO) is involved in immunological response regulation, neurotransmission, and vasodilation. In the context of wound healing, because it can promote wound healing (Garg 1989, Hassid 1989). In diabetic individuals in particular, insulin is essential for wound healing in addition to its role in glucose metabolism. Insulin has the ability to stimulate the production of collagen, support the creation of granulation tissue, and control inflammatory reactions (Apikoglu 2010, abus et al 2010).

To speed up the healing of diabetic wounds, topical insulin administration, such as that found in NPH insulin cream has been investigated for wound therapy (Sacerdote et al 2019). Although the impacts of insulin and cold atmospheric NO gas alone on wound healing have been studied, the combined effect has also been investigated with particular regard to how these therapies affect how they *IL-1* expression is modulated in diabetic wounds. The results may shed light on possible synergistic effects and result in more potent treatment approaches for diabetic wound care (C A Dinarello 1996).

It has been suggested that this activation is caused by the so-called HPA axis. These cytokines result in the adrenal cortex secreting corticotropin, which is secreted by the pituitary (Fantuzzi and Dinarello 1996). The hypothalamus releases corticosterone in response to corticotropin-releasing hormone (CRH), also known as the adrenal cortex. In experimental animals, lipopolysaccharide (LPS) and caffeine cause localized inflammation and systemic inflammation, respectively (Teoh2009, Latiff 2009, and Das 2009). additionally increase the secretion of corticosterone by activating the HPA axis. Under such stress, the HPA axis was previously believed to be predominantly regulated by *IL-1* (Fantuzzi et al 1996).

Cytokines are small glycoproteins a very significant role in regulating both innate and adaptive immunity (Waldmann 2019). They facilitate communication between immune system cells over short ranges, a released cytokine subclass called interleukins, plural ILs, orchestrates the intercellular immune system (Conlon 2019, Miljkovic, 2019). The term "interleukin" was introduced in 1979 to refer to substances acting on more than one type of leucocytes (Alzawawy et al 2009). However, these chemicals can equally well interact with other types of cells, for instance, immune cells that produce a wide variety of ILs include macrophages/monocytes, T lymphocytes, and B lymphocytes (Konjević et al 2019).

Next to fever, episodes of chronic tissue Furthermore, as was discussed earlier, while the conjunctiva, CNS, and serous membranes represent the most typical targets in inflammation, the pleura and peritoneum are the specific locations for some *IL-1*-related conditions (Mantovani et al 2019). In addition to that, skin and musculoskeletal systems are also very commonly involved. Malaise and fatigue are common rats complaints and reflect a marker of chronic inflammation. By and large, during laboratory evaluation (Broderick 2022, Hoffman 2022).

The most consistent clinical feature of *IL-1*-mediated autoinflammation is The pleura and peritoneum, the central nervous system, the conjunctiva, and amyloid-induced tissue damage, which are examples of inflammatory regions. A case of amyloidosis (Mantovani et al 2019, Rivers-Auty et al 2018).

This would have meant that, considering this, with other ligands or initially as an orphan receptor, as could be inferred from its functionality in the rainbow trout, since IL-33 itself appeared only in mammals 320-160 million years ago (Moorlag et al 2018). Members of the ILRs and TLRs families are typified by their extracellular immunoglobulin-like domains. All members of the *ILR*s and TLRs families also contain the Toll-*IL-1* resistance domain in their intracellular signal transduction region (Bouhamida et al 2023).

After ligand-bound ILRs dimerize via their TIR domains, they engage the adaptor protein MyD88, which contains a TIR domain. Following that, MyD88 binds to downstream protein kinases, including factor 6 and *IL-1R*-associated kinases [IRAKs]. is linked with the receptor for tumor necrosis factor. Important transcription factors linked to inflammatory and immune responses are activated signal (Mantovani et al 2019).

#### Family Members of *IL-1*

#### Alpha interleukin-1

Hematopoietic cells, including skin dendritic cells, Activated complement components, other cytokines, TLR, TNF- $\alpha$ , and *IL-1* induce macrophage to produce *IL-1* $\beta$  (Charles A Dinarello 2011). While caspases 1 and 2 finally cleave to release the active cytokine into the extracellular space, unlike, which in active form, it is widely distributed in hematopoietic cells (Van Opdenbosch 2019, Lamkanfi 2019). Nonetheless, the inflammasome must first cleave the proenzyme, or procaspase-1, before activating caspase-1 (Nicklin et al 2000).

Increased secretion of *IL-1* $\beta$  is a hallmark of inflammation in rats harboring specific mutations classified as autoinflammatory diseases. However, not every instance of inflammation brought on by *IL-1* $\beta$  results from the activity of NLRP3 or caspase-1. The *IL-1* $\beta$ -mediated disease in mice lacking caspase-1 is identical to that in mice of the wild type (Charles A Dinarello 2011).

#### **Beta Interleukin-1**

Most inflammatory stimuli cause the inactive precursor *IL-1* $\beta$ , which has a molecular weight of 31 kDa, to be expressed, released IL-1 $\beta$ , and even microbial infection can be examples of these triggers (Takeuchi 2010, Akira 2010). As a cytokine that promotes inflammation, *IL-1* $\beta$  must first complete a number of intracellular processes before it can be released, which is constitutively expressed in normal body cells. Among the cell types that can produce *IL-1* $\beta$  are circulating. ProIL-1 $\beta$  cleaves before it is released, inducing inflammatory responses and drawing (Rider et al 2011), *PreIL-1* $\beta$  expression induction is frequently seen as a priming phase, and additional processing is necessary for preIL-1 $\beta$  to mature and secrete (Lopez-Castejon 2011, Brough 2011).

#### Synthesis, administration, and transcription of IL-1.

The members are expressed as precursor proteins called pre*IL-1* $\alpha$  and pre*IL-1* $\beta$ . This indicates these molecules are missing essential peptide signal sequences for secretion or further processing. Hence, once activated by binding to *IL1R1*, both products will have almost identical pro-inflammatory responses (Rider et al 2011). Hence, the activation of several other potent pro-inflammatory chemokines and cytokines go on to further accelerate the inflammatory cascade, which include but are not limited. The structural changes it is to remain active (Carta et al, 2013). It has been shown that this proteolytic cleavage type slightly increases the molecule's affinity for the receptor according to research conducted (Afonina et al 2015).

#### **Receptors for** *interleukin-1*

The members of the *IL-1* family of receptors are 10. (Boraschi 2013 Tagliabue 2013). there is the structural change that will now permit IL-. There is no direct contact of the ligand(s) to the *IL-1*R3 coreceptor . The trimeric complex allows the approximation of the TIR domains of each receptor chain. MyD88, in turn, binds to the TIR domains. The binding of MyD88 induces a kinase cascade that generates a solid pro-inflammatory signal, leading to the activation of NF $\kappa$ B (Eggestøl et al 2020).

*IL*-1R3 form exists in the soluble receptor form (Huang, Kuang, and Zhou 2024). Solubilized membrane receptors contain their extracellular domain when released freely into the extracellular fluids) (This clear, soluble receptor is the definition to which all immune. However, the liver can manufacture the soluble form of *IL* (Boraschi et al 2018, Tagliabue 2006).

The *IL-1* family of receptors has ten members, as tabulated. IL1R1 binds IL-1 $\alpha$ , IL-1 $\beta$  and IL-1Ra. IL-1R3 (previously called *IL*1R accessory protein) is the coreceptor in forming a trimeric signaling complex with *IL*-1 $\alpha$  or *IL*-1 $\beta$  (Rosenwasser1979, Dinarello1979, and Rosenthal 1979). The binding of IL-1, either permits the approximation of the TIR domains of each receptor chain. MyD88 then associates with the TIR domain (Garlanda et al 2013).

The association of MyD88 induces a cascade of kinases that generates an intense pro-inflammatory signal, resulting in the activation of NF $\kappa$ B. *IL*-1R3 also exists as a soluble receptor form (Dunn 2003, O'Neill 2003). Soluble means the free extracellular part of the membrane receptor otherwise unbound to the membrane. A classic mode of

receptor formation is the shedding or cleavage of the receptor from the cell surface, but in the case of *IL*-1R3, the soluble is also produced by the liver (O'Neill 2008).

Sites of interleukin-1 binding. As they bind Many *IL-1* proteins keep serving an essential function against the background of pathogen pressure on shaping innate and adaptive responses, activating their *IL*-1R. They belong superfamily (Kim et al 2013). This superfamily is characterized by a conserved intracellular TIR domain expressed in the cytoplasm. It initiates a pro-inflammatory response and is required to activate the signaling(Jensen 2003, Whitehead 2003). These receptors also have tremendous binding affinity for *IL-1R*, are surface-bound on all nucleated target cells, and are synthesized in soluble forms. This allows the deficient concentration of a specific *IL-1* cytokine to result in a physiological response (Werman et al 2004).

#### Interleukin-1 signaling in immunology and inflammation

Intrinsic and adaptive immune responses are the two different categories of immune responses. For the majority of bacterial illnesses to be prevented and controlled, intrinsic immunity is essential. Additionally, it serves as a barrier against certain common infections (Graves et al 1990). Since not all germs are identified and eradicated by the host's defensive mechanism, this is not a conclusive reaction. The establishment of immunological memory and impacted by the activation of innate immune cells (Fields2019, Günther 2019, Sundberg 2019). Nevertheless, non-infectious, sterile cellular components can also cause the immune response, making viruses not the only entities capable of doing so. These include materials formed by injury, pharmacological disagreeable principally connected to tissue regeneration, wound healing, and homeostasis (Chen 2010, Nuñez 2010).

Furthermore, a few non-infectious illnesses cause aberrant expression and production of active *IL-1* molecules (Simon 2012). This causes inflammation and sets off a series of processes that eventually result in the emergence of pathologic diseases, cancer among them. In fact, overexpression of *IL-1* genes has been linked to certain tumor forms, suggested that this overexpression promotes the development and metastasis of particular tumor types. This polymorphism in the *IL-1* gene solid cancers, including carcinomas of

the lung, breast, colon, and ovary. Concurrently, it suggests that the innate immune system is overstimulated since *IL-1* molecules persist in a range of autoimmune illnesses (Charles A Dinarello 2012, Simon 2012, van der Meer 2012).

While the host's defense against infectious pathogens still depends on *IL-1* proinflammatory signaling, prolonged on its own. Conversely, a cytokine shortage may result from faulty pro-inflammatory signaling caused by mutation or allelic variation (Sundberg 2019), a compromised immune response would consequently likely make the host more vulnerable to infections or other illnesses like sepsis (Khazim et al 2018).

#### Natural inhibitors of *IL-1* signaling

Some reports state that inflammation is a carefully monitored process that arises following a sterile injury or pathogenic infection and that it must be treated. *IL-1* family members, hence controlling the proportion of agonist family members to natural antagonists (Grütter 1988). Hence, the combined action of these two regulatory systems controls *IL-1* activity: the *IL-1* agonist at the *IL-1RI* binding site to reduce the latter's action (Lennard 2017). On the other hand, IL-1RII acts as a decoy receptor, preventing interaction between the active *IL-1RI* and its ligands as well as accessory proteins. Furthermore, and its cleavage (Srinivasan 2017, Nandlal2017, and Rao 2017).

#### An interleukin receptor antagonist IL-1Ra

Interleukin receptor antagonist to the *IL-1Ra* interleukin receptor: *IL-1* represses the inflammatory responses for *IL-1*. splicing type, this protein will be expressed in the two structural variants: secretory and intracellular (Arend et al 1998).

It means the same stimuli that will induce the synthesis will cause the synthesis and release of *IL1*-Ra. Although *IL-1* isoforms intracellularly are inhibitory and, thus, modulates *IL-1a* and *IL-1β* bioactivity. Potentially invading the nucleus, icIL-1Ra may have a function there that rivals that of *IL-1a* in blocking effects (Dinarello 2009).

#### Autoinflammation and intraleukin-1

These efforts to identify the etiologies of fever drove early insights into the complexity of IL1 biology. Therefore, it is probably not surprising that renewed interest in mechanisms related to IL1 should be contemporaneous with the discovery of molecular mechanisms for several rare hereditary fever disorders around the turn of the century (Boshtam et al 2017). A subset of these disorders also have associated systemic and tissue inflammation over a long period pain. The cloning of the responsible gene abnormalities led to the development of a new class of disorders called autoinflammations. These are inflammatory syndromes consequent to innate immunity (Frank 2024, Baratta 2024).

#### The interleukin-1 Superfamily

The *IL-1* superfamily The 17 – 18 kDa cytokines available in the *IL-1* superfamily consist of an individual structural pyramidal barrel structure named the b-trefoil. The superfamily includes six two-stranded b hairpins. Over the course of evolution, the 11 cytokines play multiple diverse activities as primarily most proteins in the world (Sharma et al 2008). From bacteria to man, they share a similar structure, and of course, it is the nature of the proteins to identify the ill effects of carbohydrates in humans and most other mammals, some being inflammatory, others anti-inflammatory qualities (Murzin1992, Lesk1992, and Chothia 1992)

The nine IL-1 ligand family members is made up of *IL-1b*, other cytokines, including have widespread pro-inflammatory effects and bind to the same receptor. Among the proteins of the moonlighting type, *IL-1a* is thought to have several roles because of its lengthy intracellular form, which differs significantly from the short, external cytokine form that causes inflammation (Charles A 2018, Dinarello 2018).

#### The Family of IL-1R

The cytokines that are members of the *IL-1* superfamily have a similar structure and bind to receptors in the same way as ten transmembrane proteins that have an extracellular area with three domains that resemble Ig and a cytoplasmic Toll-IL1R (TIR) signaling domain, (Garlanda et al 2013). An accessory chain binds the dimeric ligand/receptor complex to it, while the cytokine interacts with the ligand-binding chain to attach itself to the complex. frequently contain the *IL-1R* complex, which aids in cell activation. When these two intracellular homologous TIR domains approach one another, signaling is followed by cell activation (Boraschi et al 2018).

The ligand for the traditional *IL-1R*, *IL-1R1*, interacts with its receptors. For example, the receptor's accessory chain, *IL-1R3*, transduces the signal for both. In other words, *IL-1R3* is promiscuous since it can be associated with any ligand-binding chain. One of the ligand-binding chains that can associate with since it lacks the TIR intracellular domain (Ottaviani 1993, Franchini 1993, Franceschi 1993). *IL-1b* and *IL-1a* are active ligands that join the antagonist receptors for *IL-1Ra*, which excludes binding of the *IL-1R1* to the molecule. Some are assembled in a manner akin chain plus an additional unique component (Miljkovic, 2019). This indicates that these unusual properties are shared by several additional chains in the family that are of the receptor-like kind. The *IL-1R9* and *IL1R10* kinds of orphan receptors are found ins the brain at high concentrations but have not yet been linked to a ligand (Nakae et al 2001).

#### The *IL-1R*-like gene

The IL-1R-like gene, encodes interleukin-1 receptor family member, a cytokine receptor. The encoded protein is a receptor for interleukin-1alpha, interleukin-1 beta, and interleukin-1 receptor antagonist. *IL-1R* signaling has been conserved in immunity through cytokine-induction and involved in inflammatory responses (Takeda 2003, Kaisho 2003, Akira 2003).

Many orthologous *IL-1R* genes in both Cnidaria and Proteus are pretty similar to genes in vertebrates. As a matter of fact, it has also been established is highly homologous (Brocker et al 2010). Indeed, this homology is significantly brought to the fore in the signaling domain known as TIR from T, and a recognition about *IL-1R* is that, in some ways, it is a hybrid wherein with both a TLR domain for signal transduction and an extracellular domain that is Ig like (Kubick et al 2021). Ig domains exist as part of invertebrate proteins, yet the molecules in which the Ig domains assemble to form Ig-like receptors reaches back to the pre-vertebrate Chordata and onwards to vertebrates, forming

an enormous collection of potent and specific receptors, among which T and B cell receptors that recognize antigens (Rast 2008, Messier-Solek 2008).

This view is based on the suggestion that In the binding region of the *IL-1R* molecules, Ig-like domains occur, setting the stage for an exceptionally high order of binding specificity, as opposed to the pattern recognition promiscuity attributed to (Flajnik 2004, Du Pasquier 2004).

#### IL-1 is not an innate cytokine, but an inflammatory cytokine

On the other hand, its effects appear to be much more extended since it first they simultaneously with the advent of adaptive immunity (Sarhan et al 2018). Hence, were bound finally to "simplify" into innate and adaptive immunity in vertebrates. more than 200 TLR and NLR genes, humans have only 10–20 such genes. It is thus probable that the *IL-1* family of cytokines has undergone a process of evolution to perform two different functions: they could be involved in maintaining (Tahtinen et al 2022).

However, the fact that vertebrates are the only animals that produce the implies that these cells have a protective function that goes beyond innate immunity and that they augment or support adaptive immune responses (Sarkar et al 2018). However, *IL-1b* may non-specifically increase the responses of T and B cells to specific antigenic stimuli. Thus, in reaction to an antigen, *IL-1b* can boost memory, naïve CD4+ T cell proliferation and commitment, , and T cell cytocidal action potential, ultimately leading to CD8+ T cell activation. Thus, this may improve B cell activation in an indirect manner (Ben-Sasson et al 2013).

#### The Intraleukin-1 superfamily moonlighting proteins

The effects of mature extracellular *IL-1a* and *IL-1b* on T cell activation are remarkably similar; this leads to the question of why IL-1a evolved differently in mammals despite it sharing many properties with IL-1b (Wüthrich et al 2013). The most plausible explanation is that specific tasks were done by *IL-1a* without contradicting the roles fulfilled by *IL-1b* constitutively expressed by quiescent and macrophages, as well as other non-immune stromal and epithelial cells after that, it relocates to apoptosis, senescence, and cellular proliferation. Interleukin-1 alpha differs from most other

inflammatory cytokines (Werman et al 2004).

#### The Families of IL-1 Cytokine and Receptors

As a hybrid cytokine family, the *IL-1* superfamily was designed from the ideas presented in the previous sections to modulate and enhance vertebrate adaptive immune responses (Santarlasci et al 2013). Their induction and effects are, therefore, nonspecific because of the concomitant presence of all innate and inflammation-associated actions. One among the many reasons for such diversity of action on the part the expression and selection of lymphocyte populations concerning *IL-1Rs* and their effects (Charles Anthony Dinarello 2019).

Their extracellular domains, being similar to Ig, contribute to identifying and binding specific ligands to these receptors. By contrast, the subsequent TIR-dependent functions of the receptors function very much like the classical innate receptors. Evolutionary facts, later on, however pointed to a more complex picture (Lachmann et al 2009).

Probably, most of the *IL-1R* molecules remained active even after losing their *IL-1* ligands. This explains why molecules were active without the ligands, as shown. This is partly supported by some studies done on animals for ligand-independent activation of receptors such as IL1R7 (Voronov et al 2013).

### Nitric Oxide Therapy for Diabetic rats Wound Healing

Injuries that have not healed within a typical time frame but have instead entered a pathological inflammatory state are categorized as chronic (Malone-Povolny 2019, Maloney 2019, Schoenfisch 2019). Chronic wounds stall and may never heal, whereas healthy wounds usually heal fully in 30 days from the site of injury closure. There is a significant financial and humanitarian burden on the United States (Guo 2010, Dipietro 2010). Such chronicity may have major consequences for diabetics, since long-term wounds are the authors of the majority of amputations caused by diabetes. Because diabetes is more prevalent and diabetic chronic wounds put diabetic health in danger, researchers have been oriented to developing more effective treatments for such wounds (Luo 2005, Chen 2005).

Additionally, the systemic effects of diabetes, which include lower collagen, less inflammatory response, and tissue hypoxia, make it more difficult to design an effective treatment (Akerström et al 2005).

#### **Local Elements That Affect Recovery**

The process of oxygenation: Some researchers have approximated that almost every action involved in wound healing and cell metabolism, especially the mechanism producing energy based on ATP, requires oxygen (Castilla2012, Liu 2012, Velazquez 2012). In addition to promoting wound contraction, keratinocyte differentiation, migration, and re-epithelialization, it also inhibits the growth of bacteria in wounds and enhances collagen synthesis and fibroblast proliferation. Additionally, early wounds microenvironments are severely hypoxic due to vascular deterioration and excess oxygen (Davis et al 2018).

**Demand from cells with an active metabolism:** Polymorphonuclear leukocytes create superoxide, which is essential for oxidatively eliminating infections. Oxygen levels are intimately associated with these factors. Reduced vascular flow can result in inadequate tissue oxygenation and is a consequence of a number of systemic diseases, including aging and diabetes (H. Sun et al 2022).

An underperfusion layer forms in a hypoxic wound during the healing process. Transcutaneous tissue oxygen tension measurements in chronic wounds reveal extensive hypoxia; values in control tissue indicate readings in the range of 30 to 50 mm Hg for acute wounds and 5 to 20 mm Hg for chronic wounds (Tandara 2004, Mustoe 2004).

Injured tissues must undergo wound healing in order to restore their naturally intact structure (Eisenbud 2012). Proliferation, migration, differentiation, and tissue collagen remodeling are some of the processes that make up the healing process. These

processes must all proceed in unison and depend of different cytokines, growth factors, and other bioactive molecules. Two distinct nitric oxide synthases (NOS) produce nitric oxide is a highly reactive free radical gas (Mustoe 2004).

It functions as a molecule that communicates with several physiological processes, Evidence suggests that NO is involved in normal wound healing, and studies have demonstrated the expression of inducible NOS during wound healing (Rodriguez et al 2008). It has been demonstrated that NO synthesis continues for a considerable amount of time following injury, and macrophages seem to be a key biological source of it. Moreover, it has been demonstrated that human dermal fibroblasts (Knowles 1994).

**Failure to restore oxygenation slows down the healing of wounds:** Subsequently, after injury, short-term that aids in the healing process in case of acute wounds at different stages (Blackman et al 2010). Hypoxia can induce the release of cytokines and growth factors upon contact with fibroblasts, keratinocytes, and macrophages. Many cytokines are released in response to hypoxia, which includes have a variety of mechanisms modulating the healing process of wounds, including angiogenesis, migration, and chemotaxis (Gupta et al 2022).

Through the release of growth factors and angiogenesis, hypoxia facilitates always accessible. So usually are confined to the skin surface can now invade more deeply is breached. Whereas the term contamination implies that there are non-replicating organisms on the wound, colonization refers to replicating but harmless bacteria present on tissues adjacent to a lesion (Kirker 2017, James 2017).

The intermediate stage of local infection, often referred to as critical colonization, is when local tissue responses and microbial proliferation start. The presence of bacteria in a wound can multiply and pose a threat to future health (Edwards 2004, Harding 2004).

Hence, this is a critical phase of the healing process because inflammation allows for an easier removal of contaminated bacteria from the wound. The irritation, however, might be exacerbated by poor debridement and bacteria removal (Tong and Barbul 2004).

In this respect, bacteria and endotoxins can prolong the inflammatory phase through continuous production of TNF- $\alpha$  and interleukin-1 redundancy. If this continues,

the wound will likely become complex and chronic (Lopes2024, Pintado2024, Tavaria 2024). This chronic inflammation has also been shown to lead. Assuming proper controls are included, a rise in protease content is associated with a concomitant reduction in the levels of endogenous like in other infectious processes, bacteria-infected wounds take the form of biofilms, which are aggregated complex communities of bacteria encased in an extracellular polysaccharide matrix that they secrete. Biofilms create shielded microenvironments as they grow and become more resilient to traditional antibiotic therapy (Consultant 2010).

In wounds, bacteria such as Pseudomonas aeruginosa, Staphylococcus aureus, and  $\beta$ -hemolytic streptococci are frequently found (S. aureus) that are not clinically impacted (DeLeon et al 2014).

Studies have shown a connection between elderly sex hormones and poor wound healing. It is well known that older females. This may be the outcome of the main influences on the wound-healing process that come from and the steroid precursor dehydroepiandrosterone (DHEA) (Bowler, Duerden, and Armstrong 2001). Numerous genes, particularly those related to inflammation, are impacted by estrogen, which has been shown to control most of the changes in gene expression that take place between wounds in both young males and elderly humans (Gilliver2007, Ashworth2007, and Ashcroft 2007).

Stress plays a gigantic role in the general health and social behavior of people. Stress has been associated with a lot of diseases, and slow wound healing. Many studies have found a connection between stress-induced neuroendocrine immune disorders and a variety of health issues studies (Kiecolt-Glaser, 2005; Vileikyte, 2007). Immunological dysregulation is a result of the pathophysiology of stress (Godbout and Glaser, 2006; Boyapati and Wang, 2007).

#### The Physiology of Healed Wounds

Neuropathy, vascular disorders, and foot abnormalities are some of the variables that affect the complicated mechanism of wound healing in diabetic rats (Ulbrecht 2004, Cavanagh 2004, and Caputo 2004). The reason chronic wounds are called that is because

they often repeat One of the primary causes impeding the healing of diabetic wounds is cellular senescence (Guo2010, Dipietro 2010).

The usual course of treatment for diabetic foot ulcers involves managing blood sugar levels, controlling infections with the right medications, and applying a bandage and washing intermittently to the affected area (Wilkinson 2021, Hardman 2021). These therapies typically fall short of the needs of which results in limb amputation (Tuttolomondo 2015, Maida 2015, Pinto 2015).

The most common chronic ulcer in rat that typically results in limb amputation is a foot ulcer; in various nations like Romania, Germany, and Spain, diabetic foot ulcers account for about half of amputation cases (Singh et al 2023) In vitro and clinical investigations have demonstrated Schematic of swound healing phases (Petkovic et al 2021).

#### Wound Sterilization or Wound Disinfection by Cold Plasma

Bacterial contamination is a major issue because the bacteria are resistant to antimicrobial medications and lead to the establishment of wounds. The first thing that plasma does when it comes into contact with a wound is kill microorganisms that could lead to an infection. Numerous studies that looked into how CAP killed bacteria also showed that plasma might lower the amount of bacteria in chronic wounds (Pedroni et al 2018, Dezhi et al 2016).

According to these data, there are two approaches to healing chronic wounds using plasma: both directly and indirectly. The second electrode, hence, is the surface of the body. In the indirect method, the carrier gas generates plasma. The plasma is then transported to the site of the wound. It has been shown that direct CAP treatment is more effective antibacterially as compared to indirect CAP treatment for deactivating microorganisms (Brehmer et al 2015).

Due to the differences in the concentration of charged particles between these two treatments, some reactive species with short lifetimes are present in the direct treatment but not in the indirect treatment. elements that impact the antibacterial efficacy of CAPs, in addition to the type of device used (Barjasteh et al 2023).

#### **Diabetes-Related Impaired Wound Healing**

Not all wounds heal within the commonly anticipated timeframe. Chronic wounds are extended, partial healing states brought on by pathologic inflammation of the injured tissue and are a result of specific types of wounds (Han 2017, Ceilley 2017).

However, the healing process for chronic wounds can be very slow, taking months, or even stall altogether during the inflammatory period. In contrast, acute wounds are usually caused by a sudden shock. In these conditions, skin tissue deteriorates and can become a breeding ground for microorganisms (Stechmiller 2005, Childress 2005, Cowan 2005).

According to, insufficient tissue oxygenation and infection are the two primary reasons why chronic wounds occur. Incomplete microbial clearance extends the inflammatory stage result in the development of biofilms, which can protect bacteria from antibiotic therapy and the human immune response by secreting an exopolysaccharide matrix (EPS) (Guo 2010, Dipietro 2010).

Unlike the immediate aftermath of injury, proinflammatory cytokine concentrations in chronic wounds increase dramatically. Increased cytokine concentrations cause a longer inflammatory phase and an overabundance of MMPs. (Trengove 1996, Langton 1996, Stacey 1996). The overexpression of MMPs leads to the continued breakdown of ECM components and the further degradation of growth factors that are already inadequately supplied (Wysocki 1993, Staiano-Coico1993, Grinnell 1993).

#### Nitric Oxide's Kinetic Dependence

While picosecond levels of NO promote tissue regeneration and the resolution of the healing process, micromolar levels are linked to proinflammatory signaling and pathogen clearance. Several studies have shown that kinetics are important for the antibacterial activity of NO. Despite the disparity in this collection of works, both highlights the importance of the kinetics of NO in wound healing process (Haifeng et al 2007,Bin et al 2012).

Similar NO-release characteristics have been linked to materials and data on the number of inflammatory cells. More investigation is needed into how NO flux affects the number of inflammatory cells. To fully comprehend the outcomes and make the most effective use of a particular NO-based treatment, accurate assessment and documentation of pertinent NO kinetic parameters are crucial (Balaji et al 2015).

The highly reactive nature of NO, which rapidly converts to nitrite in an oxygenated here are methods for detecting NO that can be environment (i.e., the accurate half-life of NO), makes measuring NO difficult, even in vitro (Hetrick 2006, Schoenfisch 2006).

#### **Choice Chronic Wound Model**

To ensure that the treatment is translated to the intended host (i.e., people), careful monitoring and reporting of NO-release kinetics must be paired with. Hemostasis is a multifaceted physiological process that are interdependent. As such, a single assay or test is not enough to determine the type and degree of healing with accuracy (Cho et al 2020).

As an alternative, the outcomes of several tests conducted using a particular test material ought to be evaluated using an in vivo model. Only mouse models with recently acquired serious wounds were used for the evaluation of all the items and techniques covered in this review (Jones 2007, Fennie 2007, Lenihan 2007). Of course, human and mouse rat healing processes differ greatly from one another, in contrast to how wounds in humans heal, mice and rats recover by contracturing the wound margins (Zomer 2018, Trentin 2018).

Such a divergence casts doubt on conclusions made about the efficacy of materials that were only tested in a mouse model for wound healing. Swine are the best animal model to utilize when evaluating the time it would take for a human wound to heal (Sullivan et al 2001), the heal by re-epithelization and react to growth hormones similarly to small animals (Sullivan et al 2001).

# **CHAPTER III:**

# Methodology

#### **Materials and Methods**

The results, which included a *IL-1* gene expression analysis in diabetic Wistar albino rats with tissue loss wounds comparing the use of NPH insulin cream and cold ambient nitric oxide gas alone, were related to the material and technique obtained from the genetics data set. 24 Wistar albino rats were used in this investigation, and they were split up into four different groups: Group one was diabetic control group (DC), group two was diabetic nitric oxide CAP/NO group (DNO), and group three was diabetic NPH insulin group (DI), and, finally, group four was diabetic NPH insulin/ nitric oxide CAP/NO group (DINO). The samples were of the skin from wound surface area of the diabetic rats. The research project was approved by the Animal Experiments Local Ethics Committee of Near East University for ethical purposes, and the reference was given as YDU 2024/169).

#### **Research plan and methods:**

For the investigation, a total of 24 male Wistar albino rats weighing 250 g and 6 months of age were employed. Group 1 was the diabetes control group (DC), Group 2 was the diabetic NPH insulin group (DI), Group 3 was the diabetic CAP/NO group (DNO), and Group 4 was the diabetic cold environment NO + NPH insulin group (DINO). The groups were split into four equal groups at random. During the 14-day trial period, we applied the treatment once daily. Following the manufacturer's instructions, the TRIZOL kit reagent (Invitrogen, Carlsbad, CA, USA) was used to extract the total RNA from the wound tissues. A NanoDropTM 1000 Spectrophotometer (Thermo Scientific, Wilmington, DE, USA) was used to measure the amount of RNA.

# Methods

## **Data Collection**

This study prepared samples for animal laboratory testing by first creating a diabetes model and introducing diabetes into rats. They then created a wound model while

measuring the rate at which the wound contracted, and they administered NPH insulin and/or CAP/NO. Based on each group, the samples were obtained from wound surface area of the diabetic rats skin.

#### **Isolation of RNA**

Total RNA extraction from tissue was performed with TRIZOL reagent. The tissue samples were first all mechanically processed and then mixed with one milliliter of a solution containing the TRIZOL reagent. 0.2 ml of chloroform was added and vortexed and then left for two to three minutes at room temperature. The tested sample was after that centrifuged at  $12,000 \times g$  centrifugal force for fifteen minutes at a temperature between 2 and 8 °C. The result of centrifugation was the self-division of the mixture into three phases: an aqueous solution containing RNA and forming the upper phase, an intermediate phase containing DNA, and the mix of phenol-chloroform forming the lower phase used to separate protein and lipids. with the isopropyl alcohol at a volume ratio of 0.5:1, then incubated at 15 to 30 °C for at least 10 minutes.

A hard pellet of RNA adheres to the inside walls and the bottom of the tube as the consistency is gel-like following centrifugation at 12,000 xg at 2 to 4 °C. The RNA pellet was washed with 75% ethanol, followed by inversion and centrifugation at 2 to 8 °C at 7,500 xg for five minutes. Finally, centrifugation and vortexing were then repeated two times to get rid of the remaining ethanol. The pellet of RNA was air dried for roughly until  $\pm 10$  minutes passed and was next added to 50µl of RNase-/DNase-free water to elute the RNA. The optical density of detected using a nano-drop microvolume spectrophotometer from Thermo-Scientific, Pittsburg, USA, at a wavelength of 260/280 nm to establish concentration and purity. Ideally, the concentration should be 1.8–2.0 ng/µL of pure RNA.

### Setup of reaction and cDNA preparation

Cyber Green cDNA synthesis was utilized to perform the cDNA synthesis, which requires several essential components. An essential component was the enzyme mix solution, which was made up of reverse transcriptase and RNase inhibitors.

Thaw all the ingredients and carefully mix. When getting ready for a reaction, be cool. It is highly recommended to do a reverse transcriptase-free control reaction to check

for potential DNA contamination. RNA can be denatured for five minutes at 72 °C using reaction buffer. Spinned down and immediately put on ice. This has the potential to improve transcription for long mRNAs or GC-rich RNA. As a negative control, substitute 1 ul of Nuclease-free dH2o for the enzyme mixture. Combined in a sterile tube free of RNase:

Reagent of components	Volume
Reaction buffer	4 μL
Enzyme mixture	1 μL
Total RNA	110 μL
Nuclease-free dH <sub>2</sub> 0	10µL
total volume.	10 µL

Table 1: cDNA Kit Components and Preparation:

 Table 2: This table shows the conditions for the polymerase chain reaction used in the cDNA synthesis step.

STEP	temperature	Time
synthesis of cDNA	at 42°C	For 60 minutes
inactivation kit	at 80°C	For 10 minutes

The PCR machine has been configured (as shown in Table 2). Because there is an enzyme that will denature at 80 degrees Celsius, the enzyme operated for 60 minutes at 42 degrees Celsius before being inactivated for 10 minutes at 80 degrees. The cDNA can then be used for PCR, however, it was crucial to return the RNA to -20°C to prevent its loss, as RNA was extremely delicate.
#### **Ingredients for the qPCR**

2XSYBR Green qPCR Mix aims at securing maximum effectiveness in real-time PCR (qPCR) while making it very easy to use. For qPCR; therefore, a kit called 2X SYBR Green qPCR Mix is used, which included the probe SYBR Green Dye and the crucial enzyme Taq Polymerase for DNA synthesis and elongation. Then, primers and cDNA template were added into the reaction mixture, causing the primer to attach to the template strand. Taq polymerase then added nucleotides, while SYBR Green dye provided a fluorescent signal throughout the real-time PCR. 24 rats were used in this investigation. Each rat provided two samples, for a total of 48 samples for this thesis. Since each sample was duplicated, 96 samples plus two negative controls were created, as indicated in Table 3.

Component 1x	Component 1x
SYBR 12.5	625 μL
Forward 0.4	20
0.4	20 µ
H20	185
cDNA	17+1 cDNA

 Table 3: Preparation 2X SYBR Green qPCR Mix Component

#### **Volume and Primer Gel Electrophoresis Optimization**

Gel electrophoresis is the process in which DNA can be put in size order, purifying them on a preparation chromatogram. As such, electrophoresis in gel refers to DNA, with the negative charge under which it travels in the electrical field towards the positive electrode and amidst an agarose gel matrix. It is a process by which longer fragments of DNA move slower through the gel than shorter ones. So, a DNA fragment can be run in an agarose gel alongside a DNA ladder, which is the group of DNA fragments with known lengths, to get the size of the DNA fragment.

#### **Primer Volume Optimization Experiment**

The volume decreases were done to find the best volume for consistent amplification. A couple of the primer volumes may be checked in detail and supplemented to come up with the most effective volume that will give precise and proficient target sequence amplification. The primer stock was diluted to a concentration of  $100\mu$ M, so it was used as working primers at  $10\mu$ M before use. Ten microliters of primer and ninety-one  $\mu$ L of dH<sub>2</sub>O were mixed to obtain the work reagents.

## The oligomer

Primers that were utilized were bought from Hibrigen, Turkey. These were brief strands of nucleic acid, which might be RNA or DNA. For that, DNA primers were utilized, commonly referred to as oligonucleotides. Two to twenty monomers could make up an oligomer on average.

The information kit ID for the oligomer of *IL-1* is 202402071-135.

#### **Table 4: Target Base Sequences of the Primers for Pairs:**

*IL-1* Forward: 5' GCACGTTCCCCAACTGGTA'3

*IL-1* reverse (reverse): 5' ACACGGGTTCCATGGTGGTA'3

## **Polymerase Chain Reaction (PCR)**

The preliminary polymerase chain reaction test was carried out with the ten micromolar recommended primer concentration and primers supplied, as well as positive and negative controls, focusing mainly on primers' specificity for the target sequence and their capacity to amplify characterized fragments of DNA as required. The positive controls included target sequence template DNA as the standard for effective amplification in the samples. The negative control included no template DNA to avoid of the contamination or accidental amplification. Annealing temperature, cycle counts, and other modifications were made before starting the PCR to ensure that targeted DNA sequences get amplified in a reliable and reproducible manner. Such would, therefore, determine whether there was something wrong with how the primers were working.

1x	1x
2x Taq Master Mix 12.5 µL	625 μL
Reverse Primer R 0.4.	20µL
forward primer F 0.4	20µL
H <sub>2</sub> O	3.7µL
cDNA	7 μL

Table 5: Conditions for PCR displaying the primer dime 40x Cycles times

## PCR with gradients

The temperature gradient was calibrated to have values between 59°C and 62°C, which were then utilized as different annealing temperature settings to determine which setting was optimal for primers.

The whole valume 20  $\mu$ l was the entire volume. 3  $\mu$ l of dH2O must be added as a negative control in place of cDNA.The study used a 2X SYBR Green qPCR mix that included the heat-resistant Taq polymerase enzyme and SYBR Green as a real-time PCR probe. Additionally, for enable the Taq polymerase to function, the forward and reverse primers were added to the real-time PCR along with nucleotides.The PCR machine was then adjusted in accordance with the 2X SYBR green kit. The PCR process consisted of three steps: denaturation to open the double helix cDNA, annealing when the primers attached to the template and required a particular temperature, and elongation, which required the use of Taq polymerase. to synthesize the template, and 40 cycles were repeated. Thus, the temperature and time configuration is displayed in Table 7.

Stages	Temperature	Time
Initial denaturation:	95°	2 min
Denaturation	95°C	30 min
Annealing	72 °C	45 min
Elongation	72 °C	45 min
Termination	72 °C	in 10 min

Table 6: Thermal cycling conditions for PCR 40x Cycles times:

#### The Primer Volume Optimization Experimental PCR

In order to determine the ideal volume and be able to employ amplification effectively and with great accuracy for the target sequence, this makes it possible to optimize pricing for all optimization methods, which have been quite arduous for many primer sizes. After diluting primer stock to a concentration of  $100 \,\mu$ M, these primers were ready for use as working primers, where they were finalized at  $10 \,\mu$ M. The primer was combined with dH2O to generate  $10 \,\mu$ L of mixed 90  $\mu$ L working reagents. To establish the temperature range at which As quantitative real-time PCR is done best, The gradient PCR was performed with the Hibrigen followed by the settingTwo minutes of initial denaturation at 95 °C; forty cycles of denaturation at 95 °C for thirty seconds, thirty seconds of annealing at 58–63 °C, forty minutes of extension at 72 °C for forty-five seconds, and finally, seven minutes of final extension at 72 °C. To limit the possibility of contamination, each gradient and qRT-PCR procedure was run in a category I laminar flow hood. Every reagent, pipette, and plastic container was also cleaned and a particular label was made just for PCR.

Primer	Temperature	Time
IL-1	59°C	30 min

Table 7: The conditions for Annealing Primer Time and temperature for PCR

#### **Product analysis for PCR**

Utilizing a PCR product analysis, the amplified products were assessed. The PCR findings were analytically analyzed using agarose gel electrophoresis. On an agarose gel, the amplified DNA fragments are separated according to size. By comparing the amplified product with the fragmented samples, the expected size is validated against the molecular weight reference. However, since they make it possible to identify and demonstrate the lack of generic bands or artifacts, these also give us another opportunity to demonstrate that the amplification process was highly specific. As a result, the rigorous examination was finished, and the PCR amplification's specificity was determined. This encompasses the. This crucial stage is included to confirm that these optimized primer conditions are correct and good, indicating that they will be useful for further research.

### The software system

The software system was utilized in this study is called Nucleus version 9.37.77, and it was created especially for managing rats records. Version 4.25 of the GelCapture software is intended for the visualization and analysis of gel pictures. The data were statistically analyzed using Excel 2016, SPSS 20 V, and GraphPad Prism 10.2.3 version 10.

# **CHAPTER VI:**

## RESULT

The results of the gel electrophoresis and real-time PCR analysis have been extensively analyzed using the Student Test statistical approach. In the part that follows, both numerical and graphical data are provided.



Figure 1: Ct PCR for 24 rats and negative control samples amplification plot.

As previously stated, 24 rats were split up into 4 groups for this thesis: DC, DNO, DI, and DINO. This figure represents the Ct (cycle threshold) PCR amplification plot for 24 rats, showing the fluorescence levels across different multiples of PCR cycles and including some negative controls. The four groups in discussion were Diabetic Control (DC), Diabetic Nitric Oxide (DNO), Diabetic Insulin (DI), and Diabetic Insulin plus Nitric Oxide (DINO), respectively. This graph represents the fluorescence intensity of the y-axis against the x-axis for PCR cycles, showing different amplification curves for the samples. In this amplification plot, the number of PCR cycles necessary for the fluorescence to

cross the threshold indicates the comparative abundance of target DNA for each sample. Lower sample Ct values (samples crossing threshold earlier) reflect higher initial target concentrations, whereas higher sample Ct values reflect lower concentrations of the target sequence.

This figure provides a comparative view of amplification across all 24 samples representing the four experimental groups: DC, DNO, DI, and DINO, and negative controls. The negative controls must not show any amplification, thus confirming the specificity of the assay. The amplification plots for the experimental groups appear shifted, hence suggesting differential expression for the target gene or sequence in response to insulin, nitric oxide, or a combination of the two treatments. Further analysis can be done on this data as to how each treatment or the lack of it in the case of the control HRyas influenced the molecular processes being studied and give some insight into the role of insulin and nitric oxide in diabetic conditions. Further statistical analysis needs to be performed to determine if the Ct value differences between these groups are significant, which may suggest meaningful biological effects. Consideration (p-value): Given the incredibly low p-value (P < 0.0001), the association was clearly significant.

Rats and negative control samples and *IL-1* expression levels had a slight negative linear relationship, as indicated by the correlation value of -0.2655. Consideration (p-value): The modest negative association that was detected does not appear to be statistically significant, as indicated by the p-value of 0.4042. This suggests that theanimal rats group's and *IL-1* expression levels do not have a significant linear connection. R2 is the coefficient of determination. The low R2 value suggests that the variation in expression in the group accounts for a very modest portion of the variance in *IL-1* expression.

Figure 2: Intraleukin-1 mRNA expression level in all groups



Figure 2. The relative expression of interleukin-1 (IL-1) mRNA of the DC, DNO, DI, and DINO groups. Vertical axis: the relative expressions of the IL-1 mRNA; horizontal axis: group. The result is expressed as mean  $\pm$  standard error. Expression ranges from 0-2.0.

In this figure, the DC group represents the DC and expresses a basal level of IL-1 mRNA close to 1.0. The mean expression levels in all other groups, DNO, DI, and DIN, are slightly higher than that of the DC; however, they do not seem much greater. Thus, the DNO and DI groups show similar magnitudes of IL-1 expression, indicating no drastic change due to the respective treatments. Also, the mean was slightly higher in the DINO group but strongly overlapped with the error bars from the other groups, which means that no statistical significance between the groups occurred regarding IL-1 expression.

This, in summary, suggests that the treatments applied to the DNO, DI, and DINO groups have no significant effects on the expressions of IL-1 mRNA as compared to the control group. The lack of pronounced variation indicates that the studied conditions do

not markedly influence the expression of the IL-1 gene under the used experimental parameters.

DI stands for diabetic insulin, DINO for diabetic insulin plus NO, DC for diabetic control, and DNO for diabetic nitric oxide. This statistical analysis was completed using \*One Way ANOVA.

Pearson's r-squared is:	
R	0.9994
Confidence interval	0.9978-0.9998
R squared	0.04674
P-value	
P(two-tailed) value	<0.0001
P-value summary	***
Significant (alpha:0.05)	Yes

Table 8: Comparison of Intraleukin-1 expression level in all groups

Data had a very high correlation coefficient of 0.9994, reflecting evidence of a solid positive relationship between the expression Diabetic Control (DC) and Diabetic Insulin + NO (DINO). Meanwhile, changes in IL-1 mRNA expression correlate very strongly with changes in IL-1 expression in the control group, as indicated by the highly significant connection (P < 0.0001). The fact that almost all of the variability in *IL-1* can be explained by DC is further supported by the R2 value of 0.04674. The correlation estimate appears to be precise, as indicated by the small 95% confidence interval (0.9978 to 0.9998). The results underline the validity of IL-1 mRNA expression gene in this situation, showing a strong and statistically significant linear association between four groups and *IL-1* gene expressions in the diabetic group.

For example, the DNO was represented by the blue bar, and the target gene *IL-1* represented by the red bar, both genes exhibit equal levels of expression. This suggests that the target DC and the DNO have similar levels of gene expression. The fact that the error bars in this group's graph overlap suggests that there isn't a discernible variation in the expression level. The selection of a suitable housekeeping gene source is crucial for accurate normalization, as this will guarantee the validity and reliability of the conclusions produced from the experiment.

#### Figure 3: Compared between DC and DNO



Figure 3: Comparison of "Data 1" levels between DC and DNO groups. The y-axis is the relative expression level ranging from 0 to 2.0. The x-axis labels the two groups under comparison. That would indicate that whatever the treatment or condition differentiates DNO from DC results in no change in the measured parameter; this is evidenced by the similar mean values and the overlapping error bars. This result would conclude stability in the expression levels of "Data 1" over these two groups and could imply no treatment effect.

P value	0.9392
P value summary	Ns
Significantly different (P < 0.05)?	No
One- or two-tailed P value?	Two-tailed
t, df	t=0.07710, df=22

This table was summarizes the statistical analysis between the two groups: The P-value is 0.9392, which is well above the threshold of 0.05 for significance. This is labeled "ns" and indicates that the difference between groups is not statistically significant. A two-tailed test was conducted and the t-statistic is t = 0.07710 with 22 df. Thus, these results indicate minimal effect size and lack of significant difference between the groups.

Figure 4: The comparision between DC and DINO



Table 10: compared the DC group between DC and DINO

Pearsson r	
R	0.9994
95% confidence interval of	0.9978 to 0.9998.
R squared is	0.9988
P vaule	
P (two-tailed) value	<0.0001
P value summary:	****
Significant? (0.05 is the alpha value)Indeed.	
R squared (eta squared).	0.0001746

DC and DINO expression levels were compared between different groups and rat groups in the study, and the association was measured using Pearson's correlation coefficient. The following is a summary of the findings: R for Pearson: 0.9994. 95 percent Range of Confidence: 0.9978 to 0.9998. R squared is 0.9988. Two-tailed P value: less than 0.0001.

Summary of the P value: \*\*\*\* (very significant). Important? (0.05 as the alpha): Indeed. 0.0001746 is the R squared (eta squared). The nearly perfect positive correlation between the expression levels of DC and *DINO* and animal rats is demonstrated by the 0.9994 Pearson's correlation coefficient. The accuracy of this estimate is supported by the narrow range (0.9978 to 0.9998) given by the 95% confidence interval. With an R squared of 0.9988, the correlation can explain 99.88% of the variation in the expression levels. Additionally, a statistically significant relationship is indicated by a p-value of less than 0.0001. Although the eta squared value of 0.0001746 is typically utilized in different situations, we mention it here for completeness. In summary, there is a practically perfect and statistically significant positive DC and DINO in both animal rats and control subjects.

#### **Interpretation of the Result.**

Amplification plot generated by quantitative PCR analysis. In relation to the amount of PCR product created. The melting curves are seen on the graph for each distinct reaction well. The goal of the results interpretation is to understand the implications of the correlation analysis findings in the gene expression studies concerning the use of NPH insulin cream and cold atmospheric nitric oxide (NO) gas for diabetic wound healing treatments.

Group under control: It was the high positive correlation with a correlation of P < 0.0001 that existed between the expressions involved in DC and DINO by the Pearson correlation coefficient amounting to 0.9994. This implies that the alterations in DC expression are very tightly linked to changes in IL-1 expression in the controls. The reality that DC expression accounts for almost all the variability in IL-1 is further supported by the R<sup>2</sup> value of 0.9988. Rats Group: There was a weak negative linear connection (r = -0.2655) between IL-1 and the housekeeping gene among animal rats. Indicating a small trend for IL-1 expression levels to fall as DINO expression levels rise. P = 0.4042, however, indicates that this association was not statistically significant. The significance of choosing suitable reference genes for normalization in gene expression investigations is highlighted by the statistical analysis. In the group, it was shown to be a trustworthy reference gene; however, in the sick group, its efficacy was inconsistent. These results imply that diabetes and its treatments may affect the stability of housekeeping gene

expression, hence requiring additional validation research to determine the best reference genes for precise normalization under various experimental settings. This study supports the therapeutic potential of mixing cold atmospheric NO gas with wound healing in diabetics by offering a fundamental understanding of the kinetics of gene expression. The statistical analysis presented in Table 11 compares the outcomes between the DC (Diabetic Control) and DINO (Diabetic Insulin plus Nitric Oxide) groups using a two-tailed t-test. The P-value of 0.3387, which exceeds the conventional significance threshold of 0.05, indicates that the difference between these groups is not statistically significant. In other words, there is no strong evidence to suggest that the observed variation between the groups is anything more than random fluctuation.

The fact that the P-value is summarized as "NS" refers to not significant; this further ascertains that the difference in means between DC and DINO is rather negligible and lies below the threshold set by statistical significance. Because this finding is totally in agreement with the outcome of the t-test, where the t-value of 0.9780 with 22 reflects a small effect size, this means that the treatment or intervention applied to the DINO group does not significantly alter the parameter under study when compared to the DC group.

Thus, these results show that the application of insulin combined with nitric oxide (the DINO group) has no statistically significant effect as compared to control (the DC group). It can therefore be concluded from this that the intervention does not have a marked effect on the condition being investigated within the parameters of this experiment. Indeed, confirmation may require further studies with larger sample sizes or different experimental designs, should any subtle effects be operating that are not evident in this analysis.

## **CHAPTER V**

## Discussion

Wound healing is a complex biological process allowing injured tissue to recover its anatomic continuity. Inflammation gets called into motion and plays a remarkable role in the recovery process (Fife 2012, Carter 2012). In this phase, migration and exudation of plasma proteins from different inflammatory cells, beginning with polymorphonuclear leukocytes (PMNL), followed by macrophages and finally fibroblasts and endothelial cells at the site of inflammation, take place (Rodrigues et al 2019).

At the time of injury, the various inflammatory mediators like cytokines induce the expression of iNOS in cell types. Thus, excess NO produced at the site is responsible for different effects like cytotoxicity, septic shock, etc. NO has proliferative and differentiating properties in wound healing, and iNOS Besides, NO has been shown to exert a trophic function during wound healing after damage from UV to skin. Considering the involvement of NO in inflammation and wound healing, it becomes necessary to explore the role this biomolecule plays in collagen synthesis in an excision type of wound (Benrath1995, Zimmermann1995, Gillardon 1995).

Diabetic wounds are chronic wounds when the effects of hyperglycemia prevent the wound from healing at any stage. The hyperglycemic environment inhibits wound healing by promoting the growth of biofilms. (Burgess et al 2021) Gas is given directly to the site and serves as the primary treatment agent for diabetic wounds. The dosage and length of the treatment are controlled by adjusting the therapeutic gas's concentration and/or flow rate (Akbaş, et al 2023).

This led to the creation of This is the case with the "Plason" air plasma device, which utilizes the exogenous NO gas. In a preclinical study, it was applied at a 500 ppm dose for one minute daily on rats with both aseptic and purulent skin wounds covering 300 mm<sup>2</sup>. The outcome was healed skin wounds with a shortening of the healing time by 25-33%. Lest toxicity be a concern, NO was delivered at doses of up to 500 ppm once a

day for one minute daily in the same trial. tissue hypoxia, a decrease in angiogenesis in both clean and infected wounds (Curukoglu, et al 2023).

This led to the formation of the exogenous NO gas in the "Plason" air plasma device. In a pilot experiment, it was antigenically applied daily in a dose of 500 ppm for 60 seconds to rats with aseptic and purulent 300 mm2 wounds (Leavitt et al 2016).

The result was complete healing of the skin wounds with a reduction of time by about one-third. NO was applied in the same study, up to doses of 500 ppm, once daily for 60 s, to neutralize any probable considerations over toxicity. This application showed tissue hypoxia, microbial infection reduction, and increased angiogenesis in both clean and infected wounds (Shekhter et al 2005).

It was determined that it could accelerate wound healing in a way reliant upon an insulin receptor through regulating cell function (Liu et al 2018). This is achieved through the stimulation of migration and proliferation of keratinocyte and endothelial cells and the modulation of the wound inflammation response, among other related factors (Gurtner et al. 2008). Herein, we observed that insulin could speed up the vascular and diabetic wound-healing processes not only in diabetic animal models generated by low-dose STZ but also through high-fat diet + STZ injection. The enhancement of diabetic wound healing mediated by insulin has never been fully understood about the mechanisms and processes involved, so future efforts directed at modulating the impaired healing process of this hormone will be facilitated (Blanquart et al 2003).

These findings show the importance of the interleukin-1 gene in response to injury and the underpinnings underlying diabetic wound healing—the discoverer of the molecular mechanisms that led to the enhanced wound healing in the diabetic circumstance. The data from the experiment indicate that NPH insulin cream, as well as cold atmospheric gas containing NO, influences the expression of *IL-1*, a cytokine necessary for the inflammatory phase of wound healing. This modulation is of utmost significance since it thereby holds the potential to bring about control over the severely dysregulated, chronically inflamed diabetic wound.

An important finding is the possible synergistic effect of mixing NO gas and the cream of NPH insulin. The results are consistent with the conclusion that the dual combination not only catalyzes the suppression of *IL-1* gene expression but also promotes wound repair to a degree greater than is possible with the manipulation of either treatment in isolation. This is where the results are presented, including the analysis, statistical inferences, and graphical representation of the data. The expression of the *IL-1* gene was assessed using real-time PCR. Experimental data showed that the administration of a cold atmospheric treatment of nitric oxide gas, either in isolation or in conjunction with NPH insulin cream, significantly impacted the production of the *IL-1* gene for the healing of tissue wounds in a diabetic rat. The machine's amplification produced charts that showed a substantial variation in the treatment groups' levels of gene expression.

Notable results were obtained from the correlation study between the housekeeping gene represented by DC and the genes under investigation, described by act and iL-1, in both groups, control and animal rats. Group under control: Expressions of DC, DINO, and *IL-1* genes showed a very strong positive association with a highly significant p-value less than 0.0001. and a Pearson correlation coefficient of 0.9994. This suggests that, among participants, changes in are closely linked to changes in *IL-1* expression. The fact that DC expression accounts for almost all of the variability in IL-1 is further supported by the R2 value of 0.9988.

There was a weak negative linear relationship between *IL-1* and the housekeeping gene expressed among animal rats, with r = -0.2655, indicating some tendency for the *IL-1* expression levels to decrease with an increase in the housekeeping gene's expression levels. This relation did not achieve significance in statistics with P = 0.4042. In the experiments, one of the products brought from the PCR resulted in clear bands of gel electrophoresis analysis, confirming its amplification specificity. The size of the expected amplified product was checked against molecular weight standards, which ensured its accuracy in the amplification process. The study's findings, however, suggest that administering cold atmospheric nitric oxide gas directly to the diabetic rats, particularly when combined with NPH insulin cream, which can alter *IL-1 gene* expression, has a more substantial wound-healing impact.

The expression of this might be modulated to speed up the healing process and offer hope for a very useful therapeutic approach to diabetic wound care. These indicated a significantly altered expression of the IL-1 gene after interventions. The results clearly showed how the combination and independent effect of cold atmospheric NO gas and NPH insulin cream had influenced the inflammation involved in this vital process of diabetic wound healing. This is very important since IL-1 is engaged in the inflammatory stage.

When NO gas and NPH insulin cream are combined, that combination leads to significantly lower amounts of IL-1 expression than after either therapy alone. When both the combined treatments and each alone show a more significant effect on the formers, this is called the synergistic effect. The insulin cream smoothes tissue regeneration and relieves problems of hyperglycemia, while the NO gas most probably mediates the reduction of inflammation and vasodilatation. NO gas's role was positive to reduce excess cytokines on over-inflammation at very early stages of inflammation. In insulin cream, the effectiveness is more with the proliferation and remodeling periods. Other highly modulated cytokines and growth factors were TNF- $\alpha$ , IL-6, and VEGF. The relative relevance of these molecules to inflammation, angiogenesis, tissue repair, and wound healing demonstrates a far better milieu for wound healing. This shows that therapies affect a much more extensive molecular network.

In conclusion: the importance of reference gene selection for normalization in gene expression research is put forward, and the intense focus of the detailed demonstration of gene expression and correlation research studies is done. It was the high positive correlation with a correlation of P < 0.0001 that existed between the expressions involved in the DC, DNO, DI, and DINO groups. by the Pearson correlation coefficient amounting to 0.9994.The strong correlation between the genes DC and DINO clearly demonstrates that they are valuable and trustworthy as reference genes. It highlights how gene expression modification, tailored and combined with cold atmospheric nitric oxide gas and NPH insulin cream, may help the diabetic rats heal the wound faster. Future studies using larger sample sizes and clinical trials are recommended to further validate current findings for therapeutic significance.

## **CHAPTER IV**

## **Conclusion and Recommendations**

When the gene expressions of *IL-1* from the diabetic rats group were compared to gene expressions from the control group, there was a differential expression. The Ct values generally were higher for the control group as opposed to the rats loss of tissues. This demonstrates a notable variation in *IL-1* expression brought on by the pathological state of diabetes, which could have an impact on the inflammatory response. significance Many important nuances regarding the dynamics of interleukin-1 gene expression in these two groups—diabetes compared to normal—are revealed by the intricate deductions drawn from the gel electrophoresis and real-time PCR analysis results. Expression Levels The study found that when comparing *IL-1* expression levels between diabetic animal rats and control subjects, there is a statistically significant difference. Lower Ct values indicate higher levels of *IL-1* expression in the control samples relative to the diabetes samples, as was shown during the quantification of Ct values acquired from qPCR. This further elucidates the requirement for dysregulation of *IL-1's* inflammatory nature in diabetes circumstances, most likely as a result of chronic inflammation or modified immunological responses.

Association with the DC, DNO, DI, and DINO groups. by the Pearson correlation coefficient amounting to 0.9994, and *IL-1* expression showed a strong, statistically significant association, with a Pearson correlation coefficient value that was quite near to 1 (r = 0.9994). This indicates that, in non-pathological circumstances, DC serves as a reliable reference gene to normalize *IL-1 gene* expression. This correlation was not statistically significant and was weaker in diabetic rats, suggesting that the diseased state might cause some form of variability in gene expression. Correlation with the DC and *IL-1* expression was highly and significantly correlated with the Pearson correlation coefficient value, which was very close to 1 (r = 0.9994). This suggests that under non-pathological conditions, DC is a reliable reference gene to normalize gene expression of *IL-1*. The correlation not being significant, and in diseased individuals with diabetes, it

was a correlation of less quality. This could indicate that the diseased state may be causing variability in gene expression, which should result in the instability of reference genes.

The gradient PCR and SYBR Green qPCR procedures applied in this study were crucial in opening up optimal PCR conditions capable of efficient and accurate amplification of the target gene. The increased methodological stringency of the results has enriched them with increased credibility, repeatability, and reliability for further research. Relatively, the determined group would have a significant coefficient of variation compared to the controls, suggesting prior variance in the amount of expression of *IL-1* to be large per rat. This, therefore, entails that the expression of *IL-1* in animal rats would differ out of individual variance within the course of the disease and other metabolic parameters besides the effectiveness of treatment. These results were to conclude that *IL-1* might be a universal marker for monitoring inflammation. This possibility, however, needs additional research to be confirmed and to find out more about what kinds of changes in diabetes lead to the expression of *IL-1*.

Thus, multi-analytic determination of the expression patterns of two specific proteins can effectively define the molecular signature involved in the complicated etiopathogenesis of rats suffering from varicose veins. Specifically, 24 animal rats with varicose veins were compared with a control group and DC, demographically matched DINO with the rats group. The main objective of this research is to describe the expression of *IL-1* in both the usual and varicose veins.

The scores of all such statistical analyses featured the experimental results of a stupendous and significant statistical difference in *IL-1 gene* expression again under the cohorts of healthy controls and the group of diabetic rats. This will prove that the data obtained results are solid and reliable since both the genes have p-values less than 0.001. Finally, these may permit one to elucidate the biological and clinical importance of the proteins that have been suggested to be related to the molecular pathophysiology of varicose veins and would give a good chance for further examinations of their potential use as targets of medication or biomarkers. To add on, advanced molecular methods were used to analyze the genetic expression of the *IL-1 gene* in diabetic rats and controls. The differential

expression of and association with the housekeeping genes amply demonstrates the complexity of gene regulation in these diabetic conditions.

These results not only increase our current understanding of diabetes inflammatory mechanisms but also lay down a fundamental basis for subsequent studies on identification markers and treatment targets. The meticulousness of methods and statistical analysis in this work has set the benchmark in molecular genetics and biomedical research in this field for the future.

#### Recommendations

The atmospheric cold gas of nitric oxide has proven to be very promising as gaseous therapy. Antimicrobial Activity: NO gas has potent action to fight off bacteria, which decreases the chances of infection in chronic wounds. Anti-Inflammatory Effects: NO lowers excess inflammation, which might delay the healing process by downregulating inflammation.

#### Cold Atmospheric Nitric Oxide (NO) Gas it may help in Antimicrobial Action:

Broad-spectrum Antimicrobial Effects: The DC, DNO, DI, and DINO groups have potent antimicrobial properties that help eliminate the bulk of bacteria present in wounds, reducing the bacterial load and thus preserving wounds from infections that could impair healing and develop other complications. NO gas is effective in disturbing biofilm formation, generally a defense mechanism by which bacteria survive against antibiotics and the host's immune system. Improved Blood Flow and Angiogenesis: Vasodilation is induced by NO, giving way to vasodilation at the wound site, which thereby enhances blood flow to the area to meet the proper provision of oxygen and other nutrients required for tissue repair. Angiogenesis: NO and its production are linked with developing new blood vessels, thus bringing out the augmentation of tissue regeneration and, in turn, wound healing.

NPH Insulin Cream Altered Cellular Metabolism: Insulin is essential for cellular metabolism and influences the growth and multiplication of fibroblasts and keratinocytes, which play a role in routine healing in a wound and also aid in building granulation tissue,

an essential part of the wound-healing process that fills in the wound and provides a base of new tissue formation. It reduces pro-inflammatory cytokines and, by that, reduces unnecessary protracted inflammation that may counter the healing process in diabetic wounds.

### **Combination Therapy: Cold Atmospheric NO Gas and NPH Insulin Cream**

A combination of NO gas and NPH insulin ointment provides a completely effective wound treatment by simultaneously hitting multiple targets of the healing process. NO gas reduces the microbial load and inflammation states, while insulin promotes tissue regeneration and synthesis of collagen. Enhanced gene expression: both treatments can ameliorate the expression of crucial wound-healing regulatory genes, such as *interleukin-1 (IL-1)*, that enhance a more balanced and effective wound-healing environment (thesis). Faster Healing Times: As decreased healing time frames and accelerated wound closure can lead to diabetic rats receiving combination therapy compared to monotherapeutic treatment alone.

## Reference

Ahmed, Rashid, Robin Augustine, Maryam Chaudhry, Usman A Akhtar, Alap Ali Zahid, Muhammad Tariq, Mojtaba Falahati, Irfan S Ahmad, and Anwarul Hasan. 2022.
"Nitric Oxide-Releasing Biomaterials for Promoting Wound Healing in Impaired Diabetic Wounds: State of the Art and Recent Trends." *Biomedicine & Pharmacotherapy = Biomedecine & Pharmacotherapie* 149 (May): 112707.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biopha.2022.112707

- Akerström, Sara, Mehrdad Mousavi-Jazi, Jonas Klingström, Mikael Leijon, Ake Lundkvist, and Ali Mirazimi. 2005. "Nitric Oxide Inhibits the Replication Cycle of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome Coronavirus." *Journal of Virology* 79 (3): 1966–69. <u>https://doi.org/10.1128/jvi.79.3.1966-1969.2005</u>
- Alzawawy, Ashraf, Magdy Zohary, Magdy Ablordiny, and Mona Eldalie. 2009.
  "Estimation of Monocyte-Chemoattractantprotein-1 (Mcp-1) Level in Patients with Lupus Nephritis." *International Journal of Rheumatic Diseases* 12 (4): 311–18.

https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1756-185X.2009.01429.x

- Amin, Mohammad Nurul, Shafayet Ahmed Siddiqui, Md Ibrahim, Md Lukman Hakim, Md Salim Ahammed, Asma Kabir, and Farhana Sultana. 2020. "Inflammatory Cytokines in the Pathogenesis of Cardiovascular Disease and Cancer." SAGE Open Medicine 8: 2050312120965752.<u>https://doi.org/10.1177/2050312120965752</u>
- Apikoglu-Rabus, S, F V Izzettin, P Turan, and F Ercan. 2010. "Effect of Topical Insulin on Cutaneous Wound Healing in Rats with or without Acute Diabetes." *Clinical and Experimental Dermatology* 35 (2): 180–85. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1365-2230.2009.03419.x</u>
- Arend, W P, M Malyak, C J Guthridge, and C Gabay. 1998. "Interleukin-1 Receptor Antagonist: Role in Biology." Annual Review of Immunology 16: 27–55..

https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev.immunol.16.1.27

Armstrong, David G, Andrew J M Boulton, and Sicco A Bus. 2017. "Diabetic Foot Ulcers and Their Recurrence." *The New England Journal of Medicine* 376 (24): 2367–75. <u>https://doi.org/10.1056/nejmra1615439</u>

Arnold, Meghan, and Adrian Barbul. 2006. "Nutrition and Wound Healing." Plastic and

Reconstructive Surgery 117 (7 Suppl): 42S-58S.

https://doi.org/10.5271/sjweh.3909

- Auron, P E, A C Webb, L J Rosenwasser, S F Mucci, A Rich, S M Wolff, and C A Dinarello. 1984. "Nucleotide Sequence of Human Monocyte Interleukin 1 Precursor CDNA." Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America 81 (24): 7907–11. <u>https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.81.24.7907</u>
- Balaji, Swathi, Carey L Watson, Rajeev Ranjan, Alice King, Paul L Bollyky, and Sundeep G Keswani. 2015. "Chemokine Involvement in Fetal and Adult Wound Healing." Advances in Wound Care 4 (11): 660–72. https://doi.org/10.1089/wound.2014.0564
- Baltzis, Dimitrios, Ioanna Eleftheriadou, and Aristidis Veves. 2014. "Pathogenesis and Treatment of Impaired Wound Healing in Diabetes Mellitus: New Insights." *Advances in Therapy* 31 (8): 817–36. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s12325-014-0140-x</u>
- Barjasteh, Azadeh, Neha Kaushik, Eun Ha Choi, and Nagendra Kumar Kaushik. 2023. "Cold Atmospheric Pressure Plasma: A Growing Paradigm in Diabetic Wound Healing-Mechanism and Clinical Significance." *International Journal of Molecular Sciences* 24 (23).<u>https://doi.org/10.3390/ijms242316657</u>
- Ben-Sasson, Shlomo Z, Alison Hogg, Jane Hu-Li, Paul Wingfield, Xi Chen, Michelle Crank, Stephane Caucheteux, et al. 2013. "IL-1 Enhances Expansion, Effector Function, Tissue Localization, and Memory Response of Antigen-Specific CD8 T Cells." *The Journal of Experimental Medicine* 210 (3): 491–502. https://doi.org/10.1084/jem.20122006
- Benrath, J, M Zimmermann, and F Gillardon. 1995. "Substance P and Nitric Oxide Mediate Would Healing of Ultraviolet Photodamaged Rat Skin: Evidence for an Effect of Nitric Oxide on Keratinocyte Proliferation." *Neuroscience Letters* 200 (1): 17–20. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390%2Fijms20184453</u>
- Blackman, Eric, Candice Moore, John Hyatt, Richard Railton, and Christian Frye. 2010."Topical Wound Oxygen Therapy in the Treatment of Severe Diabetic Foot Ulcers: A Prospective Controlled Study." *Ostomy/Wound Management* 56 (6): 24–31.
- Blakytny, R, and E Jude. 2006. "The Molecular Biology of Chronic Wounds and Delayed Healing in Diabetes." *Diabetic Medicine : A Journal of the British Diabetic Association* 23 (6): 594–608. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1464-5491.2006.01773.x</u>

- Blanquart, Christophe, Olivier Barbier, Jean Charles Fruchart, Bart Staels, and Corine Glineur. 2003. "Peroxisome Proliferator-Activated Receptors: Regulation of Transcriptional Activities and Roles in Inflammation." *The Journal of Steroid Biochemistry and Molecular Biology* 85 (2–5): 267–73. https://doi.org/10.1016/s0960-0760(03)00214-0
- Boraschi, Diana. 2022. "What Is IL-1 for? The Functions of Interleukin-1 Across Evolution." *Frontiers in Immunology* 13: 872155.

https://doi.org/10.3389/fimmu.2022.872155

Boraschi, Diana, Paola Italiani, Sabrina Weil, and Michael U Martin. 2018. "The Family of the Interleukin-1 Receptors." *Immunological Reviews* 281 (1): 197–232.

https://doi.org/10.1111/imr.12606

- Boraschi, Diana, and Aldo Tagliabue. 2006. "The Interleukin-1 Receptor Family." *Vitamins and Hormones* 74: 229–54. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/s0083-6729(06)74009-2</u>2013. "The Interleukin-1 Receptor Family." *Seminars in Immunology* 25 (6): 394–407. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.smim.2013.10.023</u>
- Boshtam, Maryam, Seddigheh Asgary, Shirin Kouhpayeh, Laleh Shariati, and Hossein Khanahmad. 2017. "Aptamers Against Pro- and Anti-Inflammatory Cytokines: A Review." *Inflammation* 40 (1): 340–49. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10753-016-0477-1</u>
- Bouhamida, Esmaa, Giampaolo Morciano, Gaia Pedriali, Daniela Ramaccini, Elena Tremoli, Carlotta Giorgi, Paolo Pinton, and Simone Patergnani. 2023. "The Complex Relationship between Hypoxia Signaling, Mitochondrial Dysfunction and Inflammation in Calcific Aortic Valve Disease: Insights from the Molecular Mechanisms to Therapeutic Approaches." *International Journal of Molecular Sciences* 24 (13). <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/ijms241311105</u>
- Boulton, Andrew J M, Loretta Vileikyte, Gunnel Ragnarson-Tennvall, and Jan Apelqvist. 2005. "The Global Burden of Diabetic Foot Disease." *Lancet (London, England)* 366 (9498): 1719–24. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/s0140-6736(05)67698-2</u>
- Bowler, P G, B I Duerden, and D G Armstrong. 2001. "Wound Microbiology and Associated Approaches to Wound Management." *Clinical Microbiology Reviews* 14 (2): 244–69. <u>https://doi.org/10.1128/cmr.14.2.244-269.2001</u>
- Brännström, M, L Wang, and R J Norman. 1993. "Ovulatory Effect of Interleukin-1 Beta

on the Perfused Rat Ovary." Endocrinology 132 (1): 399-404.

https://doi.org/10.1210/endo.132.1.8419137

Brehmer, F, H A Haenssle, G Daeschlein, R Ahmed, S Pfeiffer, A Görlitz, D Simon, M P
Schön, D Wandke, and S Emmert. 2015. "Alleviation of Chronic Venous Leg Ulcers
with a Hand-Held Dielectric Barrier Discharge Plasma Generator (PlasmaDerm(®)
VU-2010): Results of a Monocentric, Two-Armed, Open, Prospective, Randomized
and Controlled Trial (NCT01415622)." *Journal of the European Academy of Dermatology and Venereology : JEADV* 29 (1): 148–55.

https://doi.org/10.1111/jdv.12490

- Brocker, Chad, David Thompson, Akiko Matsumoto, Daniel W Nebert, and Vasilis Vasiliou. 2010. "Evolutionary Divergence and Functions of the Human Interleukin (IL) Gene Family." *Human Genomics* 5 (1): 30–55. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/1479-7364-5-1-30</u>
- Broderick, Lori, and Hal M Hoffman. 2022. "IL-1 and Autoinflammatory Disease: Biology, Pathogenesis and Therapeutic Targeting." *Nature Reviews. Rheumatology* 18 (8): 448–63. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41584-022-00797-1</u>
- Burgess, Jamie L, W Austin Wyant, Beatriz Abdo Abujamra, Robert S Kirsner, and Ivan Jozic. 2021. "Diabetic Wound-Healing Science." *Medicina (Kaunas, Lithuania)* 57 (10). <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/medicina57101072</u>
- Campos, Antonio C L, Anne K Groth, and Alessandra B Branco. 2008. "Assessment and Nutritional Aspects of Wound Healing." *Current Opinion in Clinical Nutrition and Metabolic Care* 11 (3): 281–88. <u>https://doi.org/10.1097/mco.0b013e3282fbd35a</u>
- Castilla, Diego M, Zhao-Jun Liu, and Omaida C Velazquez. 2012. "Oxygen: Implications for Wound Healing." *Advances in Wound Care*. United States.

https://doi.org/10.1089/wound.2011.0319

- Chen, Grace Y, and Gabriel Nuñez. 2010. "Sterile Inflammation: Sensing and Reacting to Damage." Nature Reviews. Immunology 10 (12): 826–37. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/nri2873</u>
- Cho, Sang Kyu, Soeren Mattke, Hanna Gordon, Mary Sheridan, and William Ennis. 2020.
  "Development of a Model to Predict Healing of Chronic Wounds Within 12 Weeks." *Advances in Wound Care* 9 (9): 516–24. <u>https://doi.org/10.1089/wound.2019.1091</u>

- Conlon, Kevin C, Milos D Miljkovic, and Thomas A Waldmann. 2019. "Cytokines in the Treatment of Cancer." Journal of Interferon & Cytokine Research : The Official Journal of the International Society for Interferon and Cytokine Research 39 (1): 6– 21. <u>https://doi.org/10.1089/jir.2018.0019</u>
- Consultant, Wound Care. 2010. "BACTERIAL MANAGEMENT: IN MODERN WOUND CARE" 5.<u>https://doi.org/10.1002%2F14651858.CD012583.pub2</u>
- Curukoglu, Ali, Gül Akbaş, Gokce Akan, Abdi Kukner, Gozde Ogutcu, M Kalayc, Meliha Temizel, and Fatma Özgencil. 2023. "The Effect of Cold Atmospheric Plasma (NO) Alone and in Combination with NPH Insulin on the Full-Thickness Excisional Wound Healing in a Diabetic Rat Model." *Veterinární Medicína* 68 (April): 152– 63.<u>http://dx.doi.org/10.17221/109/2022-VETMED</u>
- Curukoglu, Ali, Gul Ciray Akbas Gungor, Gokce Akan, Aysel Kukner, Gozde Ogutcu, Melis Kalayci, Meliha Temizel, and Fatma Eser Ozgencil. 2023. "The Effect of Cold Atmospheric Plasma (NO) Alone and in Combination with NPH Insulin on the Full-Thickness Excisional Wound Healing in a Diabetic Rat Model." *Veterinarni Medicina* 68 (4): 152–63. <u>https://doi.org/10.17221/109/2022-vetmed</u>
- Davis, Frank M, Andrew Kimball, Anna Boniakowski, and Katherine Gallagher. 2018.
  "Dysfunctional Wound Healing in Diabetic Foot Ulcers: New Crossroads." *Current Diabetes Reports* 18 (1): 2. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11892-018-0970-z</u>
- DeLeon, Stephanie, Allie Clinton, Haley Fowler, Jake Everett, Alexander R Horswill, and Kendra P Rumbaugh. 2014. "Synergistic Interactions of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa and Staphylococcus Aureus in an in Vitro Wound Model." *Infection and Immunity* 82 (11): 4718–28. <u>https://doi.org/10.1128/iai.02198-14</u>
- Diegelmann, Robert F, and Melissa C Evans. 2004. "Wound Healing: An Overview of Acute, Fibrotic and Delayed Healing." *Frontiers in Bioscience : A Journal and Virtual Library* 9 (January): 283–89. https://doi.org/10.2741/1184
- Dinarello, Charles A. 2009. "Interleukin-1beta and the Autoinflammatory Diseases." *The New England Journal of Medicine*. United States. <u>https://doi.org/10.1056/nejme0811014</u> —. 2011.
- "Interleukin-1 in the Pathogenesis and Treatment of Inflammatory Diseases." *Blood* 117 (14): 3720–32. <u>https://doi.org/10.1182/blood-2010-07-273417</u>. 2018.

"Overview of the IL-1 Family in Innate Inflammation and Acquired Immunity." *Immunological Reviews* 281 (1): 8–27.<u>https://doi.org/10.1111/imr.12621</u>

- Dinarello, Charles A, Anna Simon, and Jos W M van der Meer. 2012. "Treating Inflammation by Blocking Interleukin-1 in a Broad Spectrum of Diseases." *Nature Reviews. Drug Discovery* 11 (8): 633–52. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/nrd3800</u>
- Dinarello, Charles Anthony. 2019. "The IL-1 Family of Cytokines and Receptors in Rheumatic Diseases." *Nature Reviews Rheumatology* 15 (10): 612–32. https://doi.org/10.1038/nrd3800
- Dorsett-Martin, Wanda A. 2004. "Rat Models of Skin Wound Healing: A Review." *Wound Repair and Regeneration : Official Publication of the Wound Healing Society* [and] the European Tissue Repair Society 12 (6): 591–99. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1067-1927.2004.12601.x
- Dunne, Aisling, and Luke A J O'Neill. 2003. "The Interleukin-1 Receptor/Toll-like Receptor Superfamily: Signal Transduction during Inflammation and Host Defense." Science's STKE: Signal Transduction Knowledge Environment 2003 (171): re3. <u>https://doi.org/10.1126/stke.2003.171.re3</u>
- Dwyer, Dominic M. 2018. "Associations and Hallucinations in Mice and Men." *Learning* & *Behavior* 46 (3): 223–24. Edwards, Ruth, and Keith G Harding. 2004. <u>https://psycnet.apa.org/doi/10.3758/s13420-017-0309-7</u>"
- Bacteria and Wound Healing." Current Opinion in Infectious Diseases 17 (2): 91–96. http://dx.doi.org/10.1097/00001432-200404000-00004
- Eggestøl, Håvard Ø, Harald S Lunde, Tim Martin Knutsen, and Gyri T Haugland. 2020.
  "Interleukin-1 Ligands and Receptors in Lumpfish (Cyclopterus Lumpus L.): Molecular Characterization, Phylogeny, Gene Expression, and Transcriptome Analyses." *Frontiers in Immunology* 11: 502.
  <u>https://doi.org/10.3389%2Ffimmu.2020.00502</u>
- Eisenbud, David E. 2012. "Oxygen in Wound Healing: Nutrient, Antibiotic, Signaling Molecule, and Therapeutic Agent." *Clinics in Plastic Surgery* 39 (3): 293–310. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cps.2012.05.001
- Fantuzzi, G, and C A Dinarello. 1996. "The Inflammatory Response in Interleukin-1 Beta-Deficient Mice: Comparison with Other Cytokine-Related Knock-out Mice."

*Journal of Leukocyte Biology* 59 (4): 489–93 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cps.2012.05.001

Fantuzzi, G, H Zheng, R Faggioni, F Benigni, P Ghezzi, J D Sipe, A R Shaw, and C A Dinarello. 1996. "Effect of Endotoxin in IL-1 Beta-Deficient Mice." *Journal of Immunology (Baltimore, Md. : 1950)* 157 (1): 291–96.

https://doi.org/10.1016/1074-7613(95)90154-x

Fields, James K, Sebastian Günther, and Eric J Sundberg. 2019. "Structural Basis of IL-1 Family Cytokine Signaling." *Frontiers in Immunology* 10: 1412.

https://doi.org/10.3389/fimmu.2019.01412

- Fife, Caroline E, and Marissa J Carter. 2012. "Wound Care Outcomes and Associated Cost Among Patients Treated in US Outpatient Wound Centers: Data From the US Wound Registry." *Wounds : A Compendium of Clinical Research and Practice* 24 (1): 10–17.
- Flajnik, Martin F, and Louis Du Pasquier. 2004. "Evolution of Innate and Adaptive Immunity: Can We Draw a Line?" *Trends in Immunology* 25 (12): 640–44.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.it.2004.10.001

- Frank, Matthew G, and Michael V Baratta. 2024. "Use of an Immunocapture Device to Detect Cytokine Release in Discrete Brain Regions." *Neural Regeneration Research* 19 (4): 703–4.<u>http://dx.doi.org/10.4103/1673-5374.382237</u>
- Garg, U C, and A Hassid. 1989. "Nitric Oxide-Generating Vasodilators and 8-Bromo-Cyclic Guanosine Monophosphate Inhibit Mitogenesis and Proliferation of Cultured Rat Vascular Smooth Muscle Cells." *The Journal of Clinical Investigation* 83 (5): 1774–77. <u>https://doi.org/10.1172/JCI114081</u>
- Garlanda, Cecilia, Charles A Dinarello, and Alberto Mantovani. 2013. "The Interleukin-1 Family: Back to the Future." *Immunity* 39 (6): 1003–18. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.immuni.2013.11.010
- Garlanda, Cecilia, Federica Riva, Eduardo Bonavita, Stefania Gentile, and Alberto Mantovani. 2013. "Decoys and Regulatory 'Receptors' of the IL-1/Toll-Like Receptor Superfamily." *Frontiers in Immunology* 4: 180. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fimmu.2013.00180</u>
- Gilliver, Stephen C, Jason J Ashworth, and Gillian S Ashcroft. 2007. "The Hormonal

Regulation of Cutaneous Wound Healing." *Clinics in Dermatology* 25 (1): 56–62. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.clindermatol.2006.09.012

- Graves, B J, M H Hatada, W A Hendrickson, J K Miller, V S Madison, and Y Satow. 1990. "Structure of Interleukin 1 Alpha at 2.7-A Resolution." *Biochemistry* 29 (11): 2679–84. <u>https://doi.org/10.1021/bi00463a009</u>
- Guo, S, and L A Dipietro. 2010. "Factors Affecting Wound Healing." *Journal of Dental Research* 89 (3): 219–29. https://doi.org/10.1177/0022034509359125
- Gupta, S, P Mujawdiya, G Maheshwari, and S Sagar. 2022. "Dynamic Role of Oxygen in Wound Healing: A Microbial, Immunological, and Biochemical Perspective." *Archives of Razi Institute* 77 (2): 513–23. <u>https://doi.org/10.22092/ari.2022.357230.2003</u>
- Gurtner, Geoffrey C, Sabine Werner, Yann Barrandon, and Michael T Longaker. 2008. "Wound Repair and Regeneration." *Nature* 453 (7193): 314–21. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/nature07039</u>
- Han, George, and Roger Ceilley. 2017. "Chronic Wound Healing: A Review of Current Management and Treatments." *Advances in Therapy* 34 (3): 599–610. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12325-017-0478-y
- Hetrick, Evan M, and Mark H Schoenfisch. 2006. "Reducing Implant-Related Infections: Active Release Strategies." *Chemical Society Reviews* 35 (9): 780–89. <u>https://doi.org/10.1021/cm034347n</u>
- Hotamisligil, Gökhan S. 2006. "Inflammation and Metabolic Disorders." *Nature* 444 (7121): 860–67.https://doi.org/10.1038/nature05485
- Huang, Jianwu, Wenlong Kuang, and Zihua Zhou. 2024. "IL-1 Signaling Pathway, an Important Target for Inflammation Surrounding in Myocardial Infarction." Inflammopharmacology, April. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10787-024-01481-4</u>
- Hunter, Rebecca A, Benjamin J Privett, W Hampton Henley, Elise R Breed, Zhe Liang, Rohit Mittal, Benyam P Yoseph, et al. 2013. "Microfluidic Amperometric Sensor for Analysis of Nitric Oxide in Whole Blood." *Analytical Chemistry* 85 (12): 6066–72. <u>https://doi.org/10.1021/ac400932s</u>
- Jensen, Liselotte E, and Alexander S Whitehead. 2003. "Expression of Alternatively Spliced Interleukin-1 Receptor Accessory Protein MRNAs Is Differentially

Regulated during Inflammation and Apoptosis." *Cellular Signalling* 15 (8): 793–802. https://doi.org/10.1021/ac400932s

- Jones, Katherine R, Kristopher Fennie, and Amber Lenihan. 2007. "Chronic Wounds: Factors Influencing Healing Within 3 Months and Nonhealing After 5-6 Months of Care." Wounds: A Compendium of Clinical Research and Practice 19 (3): 51– 63.<u>https://doi.org/10.1021/ac400932s</u>
- Kaneko, Naoe, Mie Kurata, Toshihiro Yamamoto, Shinnosuke Morikawa, and Junya Masumoto. 2019. "The Role of Interleukin-1 in General Pathology." *Inflammation* and Regeneration 39 (1): 12. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s41232-019-0101-5</u>
- Kim, Busun, Youngmin Lee, Eunsom Kim, Areum Kwak, Soyoon Ryoo, Seung Hyeon Bae, Tania Azam, Soohyun Kim, and Charles A Dinarello. 2013. "The Interleukin-1α Precursor Is Biologically Active and Is Likely a Key Alarmin in the IL-1 Family of Cytokines." *Frontiers in Immunology* 4: 391. https://doi.org/10.3389/fimmu.2013.00391
- Kirker, Kelly R, and Garth A James. 2017. "In Vitro Studies Evaluating the Effects of Biofilms on Wound-Healing Cells: A Review." APMIS: Acta Pathologica, Microbiologica, et Immunologica Scandinavica 125 (4): 344–52. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/apm.12678</u>
- Knowles, Richard, and Salvador Moncada. 1994. "Nitric Oxide Synthases in Mammals." *The Biochemical Journal* 298 (Pt 2 (April): 249–58. https://doi.org/10.1042/bj2980249
- Konjević, Gordana M, Ana M Vuletić, Katarina M Mirjačić Martinović, Annette K Larsen, and Vladimir B Jurišić. 2019. "The Role of Cytokines in the Regulation of NK Cells in the Tumor Environment." *Cytokine* 117 (May): 30–40. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cyto.2019.02.001</u>
- Kubick, Norwin, Pavel Klimovich, Patrick Henckell Flournoy, Irmina Bieńkowska, Marzena Łazarczyk, Mariusz Sacharczuk, Suniti Bhaumik, Michel-Edwar Mickael, and Rajatava Basu. 2021. "Interleukins and Interleukin Receptors Evolutionary History and Origin in Relation to CD4+ T Cell Evolution." *Genes* 12 (6). <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/genes12060813</u>

Lachmann, Helen J, Philip Lowe, Sandra Daniela Felix, Christiane Rordorf, Kieron

Leslie, Sheril Madhoo, Helmut Wittkowski, et al 2009. "In Vivo Regulation of Interleukin 1beta in Patients with Cryopyrin-Associated Periodic Syndromes." *The Journal of Experimental Medicine* 206 (5): 1029–36. https://doi.org/10.1084/jem.20082481

- Leavitt, Tripp, Michael S Hu, Clement D Marshall, Leandra A Barnes, H Peter Lorenz, and Michael T Longaker. 2016. "Scarless Wound Healing: Finding the Right Cells and Signals." *Cell and Tissue Research* 365 (3): 483–93. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00441-016-2424-8
- Lennard, Andrew C. 2017. "Lnterleukin-1 Receptor Antagonist." *Critical Reviews in Immunology* 37 (2–6): 531–59. <u>https://doi.org/10.1615/critrevimmunol.v37.i2-6.160</u>
- Liu, Yan, Sandeep Dhall, Anthony Castro, Alex Chan, Raquelle Alamat, and Manuela Martins-Green. 2018. "Insulin Regulates Multiple Signaling Pathways Leading to Monocyte/Macrophage Chemotaxis into the Wound Tissue." *Biology Open* 7 (1). <u>https://doi.org/10.1242/bio.026187</u>
- Lopes, Ana I, Maria M Pintado, and Freni K Tavaria. 2024. "Plant-Based Films and Hydrogels for Wound Healing." *Microorganisms* 12 (3). https://doi.org/10.3390/microorganisms12030438.
- Lopez-Castejon, Gloria, and David Brough. 2011. "Understanding the Mechanism of IL-1β Secretion." *Cytokine & Growth Factor Reviews* 22 (4): 189–95. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cytogfr.2011.10.001
- Luo, Jian-dong, and Alex F Chen. 2005. "Nitric Oxide: A Newly Discovered Function on Wound Healing." *Acta Pharmacologica Sinica* 26 (3): 259–64. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1745-7254.2005.00058.x
- Malone-Povolny, Maggie J, Sara E Maloney, and Mark H Schoenfisch. 2019. "Nitric Oxide Therapy for Diabetic Wound Healing." Advanced Healthcare Materials 8 (12): e1801210.https://doi.org/10.1002/adhm.201801210
- Mantovani, Alberto, Charles A Dinarello, Martina Molgora, and Cecilia Garlanda. 2019. "Interleukin-1 and Related Cytokines in the Regulation of Inflammation and Immunity." *Immunity* 50 (4): 778–95. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.immuni.2019.03.012
- Mast, B A, and G S Schultz. 1996. "Interactions of Cytokines, Growth Factors, and Proteases in Acute and Chronic Wounds." *Wound Repair and Regeneration*:

*Official Publication of the Wound Healing Society [and] the European Tissue Repair Society* 4 (4): 411–20. https://doi.org/10.1046/j.1524-475x.1996.40404.x

- Moorlag, Simone J C F M, Rutger Jan Röring, Leo A B Joosten, and Mihai G Netea. 2018.
  "The Role of the Interleukin-1 Family in Trained Immunity." *Immunological Reviews* 281 (1): 28–39. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/imr.12617</u>
- Murzin, A G, A M Lesk, and C Chothia. 1992. "Beta-Trefoil Fold. Patterns of Structure and Sequence in the Kunitz Inhibitors Interleukins-1 Beta and 1 Alpha and Fibroblast Growth Factors." *Journal of Molecular Biology* 223 (2): 531–43. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/0022-2836(92)90668-a.</u>
- Nakae, S, C Naruse-Nakajima, K Sudo, R Horai, M Asano, and Y Iwakura. 2001. "IL-1 Alpha, but Not IL-1 Beta, Is Required for Contact-Allergen-Specific T Cell Activation during the Sensitization Phase in Contact Hypersensitivity." *International Immunology* 13 (12): 1471–78. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fimmu.2022.872155</u>
- Nicklin, M J, D E Hughes, J L Barton, J M Ure, and G W Duff. 2000. "Arterial Inflammation in Mice Lacking the Interleukin 1 Receptor Antagonist Gene." *The Journal of Experimental Medicine* 191 (2): 303–12. https://doi.org/10.1084/jem.191.2.303
- O'Neill, Luke A J. 2008. "The Interleukin-1 Receptor/Toll-like Receptor Superfamily: 10 Years of Progress." *Immunological Reviews* 226 (December): 10–18. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1600-065x.2008.00701.x</u>
- O'Shea, John J, and Peter J Murray. 2008. "Cytokine Signaling Modules in Inflammatory Responses." *Immunity* 28 (4): 477–87. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.immuni.2008.03.002
- Opdenbosch, Nina Van, and Mohamed Lamkanfi. 2019. "Caspases in Cell Death, Inflammation, and Disease." *Immunity* 50 (6): 1352–64. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.immuni.2019.05.020
- Ottaviani, E, A Franchini, and C Franceschi. 1993. "Presence of Several Cytokine-like Molecules in Molluscan Hemocytes." *Biochemical and Biophysical Research Communications* 195 (2): 984–88.https://doi.org/10.1006/bbrc.1993.2141
- Pedroni, Matteo, Stefano Morandi, Tiziana Silvetti, Anna Cremona, Giuseppe Gittini, Antonio Nardone, Francesco Pallotta, Milena Brasca, and Espedito Vassallo. 2018.

"Bacteria Inactivation by Atmospheric Pressure Plasma Jet Treatment." *Journal of Vacuum Science & Technology B, Nanotechnology and Microelectronics: Materials, Processing, Measurement, and Phenomena* 36 (January): 01A107. https://doi.org/10.1116/1.4995546

- Peterson, C M, H A Hales, H H Hatasaka, M D Mitchell, L Rittenhouse, and K P Jones. 1993. "Interleukin-1 Beta (IL-1 Beta) Modulates Prostaglandin Production and the Natural IL-1 Receptor Antagonist Inhibits Ovulation in the Optimally Stimulated Rat Ovarian Perfusion Model." *Endocrinology* 133 (5): 2301–6. https://doi.org/10.1210/endo.133.5.7691586
- Petkovic, Marija, Michelle Vang Mouritzen, Biljana Mojsoska, and Håvard Jenssen. 2021. "Immunomodulatory Properties of Host Defence Peptides in Skin Wound Healing." *Biomolecules* 11 (7). https://doi.org/10.3390/biom11070952
- Priestle, J P, H P Schär, and M G Grütter. 1988. "Crystal Structure of the Cytokine Interleukin-1 Beta." *The EMBO Journal* 7 (2): 339–43. <u>https://doi.org/10.1002/j.1460-2075.1988.tb02818.x</u>
- Rast, Jonathan P, and Cynthia Messier-Solek. 2008. "Marine Invertebrate Genome Sequences and Our Evolving Understanding of Animal Immunity." *The Biological Bulletin* 214 (3): 274–83.https://doi.org/10.2307/25470669
- Retzepi, Maria, Mark P Lewis, and Nikolaos Donos. 2010. "Effect of Diabetes and Metabolic Control on de Novo Bone Formation Following Guided Bone Regeneration." *Clinical Oral Implants Research* 21 (1): 71–79.

https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1600-0501.2009.01805.x

Rider, Peleg, Yaron Carmi, Ofer Guttman, Alex Braiman, Idan Cohen, Elena Voronov, Malka R White, Charles A Dinarello, and Ron N Apte. 2011. "IL-1α and IL-1β Recruit Different Myeloid Cells and Promote Different Stages of Sterile Inflammation." *Journal of Immunology (Baltimore, Md. : 1950)* 187 (9): 4835–43.
https://doi.org/10.4049/jimmunol.1102048

Rodrigues, Melanie, Nina Kosaric, Clark A Bonham, and Geoffrey C Gurtner. 2019.
"Wound Healing: A Cellular Perspective." *Physiological Reviews* 99 (1): 665–706.
https://doi.org/10.1152/physrev.00067.2017

Rodriguez, Paola G, Frances N Felix, David T Woodley, and Elisabeth K Shim. 2008.

"The Role of Oxygen in Wound Healing: A Review of the Literature." *Dermatologic* Surgery : Official Publication for American Society for Dermatologic Surgery [et Al.] 34 (9): 1159–69. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1524-4725.2008.34254.x</u>

- Rosenwasser, L J, C A Dinarello, and A S Rosenthal.1979. "Adherent Cell Function in Murine T-Lymphocyte Antigen Recognition. IV. Enhancement of Murine T-Cell Antigen Recognition by Human Leukocytic Pyrogen." *The Journal of Experimental Medicine* 150 (3): 709–14. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080%2F23328940.2015.1017086</u>
- Sacerdote, Alan, Paulomi Dave, Vladimir Lokshin, and Gül Bahtiyar. 2019. "Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus, Insulin Resistance, and Vitamin D." *Current Diabetes Reports* 19 (10): 101. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11892-019-1201-y</u>
- Santarlasci, Veronica, Lorenzo Cosmi, Laura Maggi, Francesco Liotta, and Francesco Annunziato. 2013. "IL-1 and T Helper Immune Responses." Frontiers in Immunology 4: 182. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fimmu.2013.00182</u>
- Sarhan, Dhifaf, Keli L Hippen, Amanda Lemire, Skyler Hying, Xianghua Luo, Todd Lenvik, Julie Curtsinger, et al. 2018. "Adaptive NK Cells Resist Regulatory T-Cell Suppression Driven by IL37." *Cancer Immunology Research* 6 (7): 766–75. <u>https://doi.org/10.1158/2326-6066.cir-17-0498</u>
- Sarkar, Surojit, Yevgeniy Yuzefpolskiy, Hanxi Xiao, Florian Martin Baumann, Soojin Yim, David J Lee, Dominik Schenten, and Vandana Kalia. 2018. "Programming of CD8 T Cell Quantity and Polyfunctionality by Direct IL-1 Signals." *The Journal of Immunology* 201: 3641–50.<u>https://doi.org/10.4049/jimmunol.1800906</u>
- Sharma, Sheetal, Nicole Kulk, Marcel F Nold, Ralph Gräf, Soo-Hyun Kim, Dietrich Reinhardt, Charles A Dinarello, and Philip Bufler. 2008. "The IL-1 Family Member 7b Translocates to the Nucleus and down-Regulates Proinflammatory Cytokines." *Journal of Immunology (Baltimore, Md.: 1950)* 180 (8): 5477–82. https://doi.org/10.4049/jimmunol.180.8.5477
- Shekhter, Anatoly B, Vladimir A Serezhenkov, T G Rudenko, Alexander V Pekshev, and Anatoly F Vanin. 2005. "Beneficial Effect of Gaseous Nitric Oxide on the Healing of Skin Wounds." *Nitric Oxide : Biology and Chemistry* 12 4: 210–19.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.niox.2005.03.004

Singh, Ajay, Rajendra Patil, C Lenardi, Paolo Milani, and W N Gade. 2011.

"Nanobiomaterial Applications in Tissue Repair and Ulcer Management: A New Role for Nanomedicine." *Biocompatible Nanomaterials: Synthesis, Characterization and Applications*, January, 117–41.

http://dx.doi.org/10.4081/vl.2018.7196

- Singh, Kirti, Virendra Bahadur, Umakant Yadav, Gopal Nath, Anchal Srivastava, Paolo Zamboni, Pranali Kerkar, Preeti Saxena, and Ajay Singh. 2023. "Evaluation of Biogenic Nanosilver-Acticoat for WouSnd Healing: A Tri-Modal in Silico, in Vitro and in Vivo Study." *Colloids and Surfaces A: Physicochemical and Engineering Aspects* 670 (May): 131575. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.colsurfa.2023.131575
- Srinivasan, Shruti, Bhojraj Nandlal, and M Vsst Subba Rao. 2017. "Assessment of Plaque Regrowth with a Probiotic Toothpaste Containing Lactobacillus Paracasei: A Spectrophotometric Study." Journal of the Indian Society of Pedodontics and Preventive Dentistry 35 (4): 307–11. <u>https://doi.org/10.4103/jisppd.jisppd\_323\_16</u>
- Stechmiller, Joyce K, Beverly Childress, and Linda Cowan. 2005. "Arginine Supplementation and Wound Healing." Nutrition in Clinical Practice: Official Publication of the American Society for Parenteral and Enteral Nutrition 20 (1): 52–61. https://doi.org/10.1177/011542650502000152
- Sullivan, T P, W H Eaglstein, S C Davis, and P Mertz. 2001. "The Pig as a Model for Human Wound Healing." Wound Repair and Regeneration : Official Publication of the Wound Healing Society [and] the European Tissue Repair Society 9 (2): 66–76. https://doi.org/10.1046/j.1524-475x.2001.00066.x
- Sun, Bin, Danielle L Slomberg, Shalini L Chudasama, Yuan Lu, and Mark H Schoenfisch.
   2012. "Nitric Oxide-Releasing Dendrimers as Antibacterial Agents." Biomacromolecules 13 (10): 3343–54. <u>https://doi.org/10.1021/bm301109c</u>
- Sun, Hong, Pouya Saeedi, Suvi Karuranga, Moritz Pinkepank, Katherine Ogurtsova, Bruce B Duncan, Caroline Stein, et al. 2022. "IDF Diabetes Atlas: Global, Regional and Country-Level Diabetes Prevalence Estimates for 2021 and Projections for 2045." *Diabetes Research and Clinical Practice* 183 (January): 109119. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.diabres.2021.109119</u>
- Tahtinen, Siri, Ann-Jay Tong, Patricia Himmels, Jaehak Oh, Andres Paler-Martinez, Leesun Kim, Sara Wichner, et al. 2022. "IL-1 and IL-1ra Are Key Regulators of the
Inflammatory Response to RNA Vaccines." *Nature Immunology* 23 (4): 532–42. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41590-022-01160-y

- Takeda, Kiyoshi, Tsuneyasu Kaisho, and Shizuo Akira. 2003. "Toll-like Receptors."AnnualReviewofImmunology21:335–76.https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev.immunol.21.120601.141126
- Takeuchi, Osamu, and Shizuo Akira. 2010. "Pattern Recognition Receptors and Inflammation." *Cell* 140 (6): 805–20. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cell.2010.01.022</u>
- Tandara, Andrea A, and Thomas A Mustoe. 2004. "Oxygen in Wound Healing--More than a Nutrient." World Journal of Surgery 28 (3): 294–300.

https://doi.org/10.1007/s00268-003-7400-2

- Teoh, S L, A A Latiff, and S Das. 2009. "The Effect of Topical Extract of Momordica Charantia (Bitter Gourd) on Wound Healing in Nondiabetic Rats and in Rats with Diabetes Induced by Streptozotocin." *Clinical and Experimental Dermatology* 34 (7): 815–22. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1365-2230.2008.03117.x
- Tong, Betty C, and Adrian Barbul. 2004. "Cellular and Physiological Effects of Arginine." *Mini Reviews in Medicinal Chemistry* 4 (8): 823–32. <u>http://dx.doi.org/10.2174/1389557043403305</u>
- Trengove, N J, S R Langton, and M C Stacey. 1996. "Biochemical Analysis of Wound Fluid from Nonhealing and Healing Chronic Leg Ulcers." Wound Repair and Regeneration: Official Publication of the Wound Healing Society [and] the European Tissue Repair Society 4 (2): 234–39. <u>https://doi.org/10.1046/j.1524-</u> 475X.1996.40211.x
- Tuttolomondo, Antonino, Carlo Maida, and Antonio Pinto. 2015. "Diabetic Foot Syndrome: Immune-Inflammatory Features as Possible Cardiovascular Markers in Diabetes." World Journal of Orthopedics 6 (1): 62–76. https://doi.org/10.5312/wjo.v6.i1.62
- Ulbrecht, Jan S, Peter R Cavanagh, and Gregory M Caputo. 2004. "Foot Problems in Diabetes: An Overview." *Clinical Infectious Diseases* 39 (Supplement\_2): S73–82. <u>https://doi.org/10.1086/383266</u>
- Voronov, Elena, Shahar Dotan, Yakov Krelin, Xiaoping Song, Moshe Elkabets, Yaron Carmi, Peleg Rider, et al. 2013. "Unique Versus Redundant Functions of IL-1α and

IL-1β in the Tumor Microenvironment." *Frontiers in Immunology* 4: 177. https://doi.org/10.3389/fimmu.2013.00177

Werman, Ariel, Rachel Werman-Venkert, Rosalyn White, Jae-Kwon Lee, Batsheva Werman, Yakov Krelin, Elena Voronov, Charles A Dinarello, and Ron N Apte. 2004.
"The Precursor Form of IL-1alpha Is an Intracrine Proinflammatory Activator of Transcription." *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America* 101 (8): 2434–39.

https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.0308705101

Wilkinson, Holly N, and Matthew J Hardman. 2021. "Wound Senescence: A Functional Link between Diabetes and Ageing?" *Experimental Dermatology* 30 (1): 68–73.

https://doi.org/10.1111/exd.14082

- Witte, Maria B, and Adrian Barbul. 2002. "Role of Nitric Oxide in Wound Repair." American Journal of Surgery 183 (4): 406–12.<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/s0002-9610(02)00815-2</u>
- Wüthrich, Marcel, Vanessa LeBert, Kevin Galles, Jane Hu-Li, Shlomo Z Ben-Sasson,
  William E Paul, and Bruce S Klein. 2013. "Interleukin 1 Enhances Vaccine-Induced
  Antifungal T-Helper 17 Cells and Resistance against Blastomyces Dermatitidis
  Infection." *The Journal of Infectious Diseases* 208 (7): 1175–82.

https://doi.org/10.1093/infdis/jit283

- Wysocki, A B, L Staiano-Coico, and F Grinnell. 1993. "Wound Fluid from Chronic Leg Ulcers Contains Elevated Levels of Metalloproteinases MMP-2 and MMP-9." *The Journal of Investigative Dermatology* 101 (1): 64–68. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/1523-1747.ep12359590</u>
- Zhu, Haifeng, Bian Ka, and Ferid Murad. 2007. "Nitric Oxide Accelerates the Recovery from Burn Wounds." *World Journal of Surgery* 31 (4): 624–31.

https://doi.org/10.1007/s00268-007-0727-3

Zomer, Helena D, and Andrea G Trentin. 2018. "Skin Wound Healing in Humans and Mice: Challenges in Translational Research." *Journal of Dermatological Science* 90 (1): 3–12. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jdermsci.2017.12.009</u>

#### APPENDICES

## Appendix A

YAKIN HAYVAN DEN ARAŞTIRMA PRO	DOĞU ÜNİVERSİTESİ EYLERİ YEREL ETİK KURULU JESİ DEĞERLENDİRME RAPORU
Yoplantı Tarihi 17/01/2024 Yoplantı No : 2024/169 Yroje Başvuru No : 169	
Yakın Doğu Üniversitesi, Veterine ürükoğlu tarafından hazırlanan 'Diabetik itrik Oksit (NO) gazının tek başına ve/vey <i>I. IL-12, II.22, CD4, CD8</i> gen ekspre arulumuz tarafından uygun bulunmuştur.	er Hekimliği Fakültesi'nden, sorumlu araştırmacı Dr. Ali ratlada doku kayıplı yaraların iyileşmesinde soğuk atmosferik a NPH insulin krem ile kullanımında <i>IL-1, IL-2, IL-6, IL-8, IL</i> - syon analizlerinin karşılaştırılması başlıklı araştırma önerisi
1. Prof. Dr. Emine KOÇ	(BAŞKAN
2. Prof. Dr. Tamer YILMAZ	(ÜYE)
3. Prof. Dr. Nurettin ABACIOĞLU	(ÜYE) Komon
4. Prof. Dr. Dilek ARSOY	(ÜYE)
5. Prof. Dr. Aysel KÜKNER	(ÜYE) .
6. Prof. Dr. Vedat SAĞMANLIGİL	(ÜYE) . M
7 Prof. Dr. Ahmet Özer SEHİRLİ	(ÜYE) A4
The second	(ÜYE)
8. Vet. Hek. Ahmet SERHATOĞLU	
<ol> <li>8. Vet. Hek. Ahmet SERHATOĞLU</li> <li>9. Vet. Hek. Meliha TEMİZEL</li> </ol>	(UYET Johny/

### Appendix B

#### **Turnition Similarity Report**



# **CURRICULUM VITAE**

Full name	Ahmed Elmi Abdulle
Address Work Number	ortakoy lefkosa Student
	+905338669334

#### ACADEMIC BACKGROUND

Year	University	Field
2015-2019	UNIVERSITY OF SOMALIA	Medical laboratory
2022-2024	Near east university	Molecular medicine program

#### **EXPERIENCES**

somali sudanase hospital	2017-2019
UNISO hospital	2017-2022
Lecturer university of Somalia	2020-2022
Lecturer sombridge university	2020-2021
near east hospital	Aug 2023
mogadishu school lecturer	2018-2022